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THE COMPANY




HISTORY

In the scope of reinforcing our respective imprint in the regional market and in the United Arab Emirates, United
Insurance Company and Fidelity Assurance and Reinsurance SARL celebrated a newfound identity as Fidelity United,
originated from the recent partnership between both companies in November 2018. Fidelity United is one of the
pioneering insurance companies registered in 1976, celebrating its 45th anniversary in 2021.

The rebranding presents Fidelity United as being a complete insurance solutions company, providing distinguished
product categories and offering top-notch service to our customers and partners, available in the present market.

The firm begins with understanding the corporate and individual client’s needs by providing tailored solutions, in cognition
to keep up with the ever-changing market trends. The company focuses on making its new brand identity a preferred
choice of insurance solutions in the region, reflecting strongly on its core values of transparency and responsibility.

Having embraced the company’s slogan, ‘#BeConfident’, the experienced professionals are committed to achieve
superior and sustainable profitable growth. Their approach is to provide bespoke solutions and a unique brand
experience, by adopting effective risk management and operating in an ethical and professional manner. The
operational business model followed within the company since its rebirth, empowers stakeholders and partners,
optimizes company performance, and capitalizes on the passion, knowledge, and expertise of its employees.

VISION
To become the Home of Insurance

MISSION
To create a business model that empowers our stakeholders, optimizes our performance by way of innovation and
capitalizes on the passion, knowledge, and expertise of our employees.



MESSAGE FROM
THE CAPTAIN




| am pleased to present our Sustainability
Report, a testament to our unwavering
commitment to environmental responsibility,
social progress, and ethical governance. At
Fidelity United, we recognize the pivotal role
the insurance industry plays in shaping a
sustainable future in the United Arab
Emirates, and we take pride in our role as
responsible stewards of both financial and
environmental well-being.

In this report, you will find a comprehensive
overview of our environmental initiatives.
From adopting eco-friendly practices in our
operations to investing in renewable energy
sources, we are dedicated to minimizing our
ecological footprint. We are actively working
towards aligning our business strategies
with global sustainability goals, fostering a
resilient and environmentally conscious
future.

Our commitment to social impact is
embedded in our corporate values. Through
partnerships, community engagement, and
philanthropic endeavors, we strive to make
a positive difference in the communities we
serve. This report outlines our initiatives to
support education, healthcare, and other

critical areas, underscoring our dedication to
being a responsible corporate citizen.

A cornerstone of our sustainability efforts is
our commitment to ethical governance.
Transparent and accountable business
practices are integral to our corporate
identity. This report provides insights into
our governance structure, highlighting our
commitment to fairness, integrity, and
compliance with the highest standards. We
believe that ethical governance is not just a
choice but a fundamental obligation to our
stakeholders.

As we celebrate our achievements outlined
in this report, we recognize that the journey
towards sustainability is collaborative. We
appreciate the dedication of every member
of the Fidelity United family, and we
encourage ongoing dialogue and
collaboration ~ with  our  stakeholders.
Together, we can create a lasting impact on
our planet and society.

Fidelity United has been resilient to_the
ever-changing global health and eCQﬁ;@Smic
challenges, which is a credit to oury taff our,

clients and partners who have COzhymled%IQ e* 721

support us, and our leadership team who
have been steadfast and dedicated.

Although we are making good progress in
meeting our annual sustainability targets
and long-term goals, we continue to

strengthen our focus on targets where we
want to aim higher: increasing diversity in
our workforce, improving employee and
client well-being and training, focusing on
and

engagement,
sustainability

quantifying the




SUSTAINABILITY
STRATEGY AND
COMMITMENT




Sustainability at the corporate level has evolved from the
notion of Corporate Social Responsibility - mainly focused
on corporate philanthropy. It is becoming a strategic priority
for companies to seize opportunities, reduce costs and to
build competitive edge. Sustainability management is the
integrated management of economic, social, and
environmental performance for the purpose of maximizing
benefits for all stakeholder groups. It helps companies
identify social, environmental, economic and governance
risks and opportunities that increasingly impact the success
of companies through driving performance gains and
increasing competitiveness. During the last few years, UAE
has deployed extensive efforts towards driving sustainability
forward in the country under the framework of UAE Vision
2021 and in alignment with the UN Sustainable
Development Goals (SDG). The vision is aimed at ensuring a
sustainable environment and infrastructure.

Our Way Forward

The core business of Fidelity United is to provide a safety net
to individuals and companies to empower them to achieve
their desired goals. Our corporate responsibility approach
and commitments guide our operating model to respond to
environmental, social and governance challenges and drive
continuous iImprovement.

Our ESG Strategy is focused on embedding sustainability in
all business activities and using our roles as an insurer,
investor and employer to manage the risks posed by
various challenges and to foster a more inclusive society.
We at Fidelity United, are committed to demonstrate our
ESG goals to add value for key stakeholders, customers,
shareholders and employees. We am to create an
environmentally conscious workplace through sustainable
choices and initiatives. We want our team to believe in our
vision and practice environmentally friendly habits in the
office to achieve our goals in the sustainability journey.
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HIGHLIGHTS
OF 2023



Continuing on our journey of growth, the topline has AWARDS
increased at CAGR of 34% annually since 2018. Top line
has increased by 55% as compared to prior year.

BEST PET INSURANCE
PROVIDER
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2023

wwwinsuretek.org

We generaled

AED 654 Mil

revenue

wemanaged 2023

500,000+

claims

We were ranked 26th at the end of 2019 amongst the
listed insurance companies in UAE and have jumped 10
positions to be ranked 15th at the end of 2023.

W oparate from

5 offices inthe U

to serve you heﬁ ==




ENVIRONMENT
POLICY STATEMENT
INITIATIVES AND GOALS



Environmental Operations:

Environmental operations are an essential component of
overall ESG management. By integrating environmental
considerations into our operations, we tend to improve
operational efficiency, enhance our reputation, and
contribute to the transition to a more sustainable
economy.

We have implemented practices and strategies to
address and manage our environmental impact. We
focus specifically on:
- how to reduce energy consumption and increase
energy efficiency
reduce water usage
reduce plastic
comply with environmental regulations and standards
adopt voluntary initiatives o demonstrate
environmental responsibility

Environmental Oversight
Message from the Board
With a robust ESG program established within our
company’'s management structure, we, at the board level,
ensure thorough oversight and evaluation of ESG matters.

We entrust management to proficiently navigate the
constantly shifting risk landscape and give relevant
metrics to the board.

Our focus lies in ensuring that the company's strategy,
business model, and operations align with material risks,

promising results, and the creation of long-term value.

Recognizing the increasingly evident risks posed by
environmental factors, we grasp their implications on
business strategy and performance, acknowledging
their potential to fill various sides of our operations.

We remain well informed about any environmental
oversight issues, what is the evaluation of the risks that
arise from ESG factors and what are decisions the
company decides to take towards them.

Message from the Management

Because ESG strategy should align with business strategy
and focus on material risks and business drivers, we are
fully aware on how those risks and opportunities are being
addressed. Management has delegated comprehensive
oversight responsibilities to the ESG committee to facilitate
the smooth launch of our ESG strategy.

Given the recurrent nature of ESG discussions and the
Increasing expectations for management involvement in
ESG oversight, we have established an appropriate rhythm.
We consistently convey ESG strategy updates to
management and keep the board informed about progress
and challenges encountered.

The ESG committee ensures the execution of goals and the
seamless integration of milestones into the plan. With the
right personnel and processes in place, we foster a culture
that embraces ESG activities.



Environmental

We are committed to reducing our paper use and encourage our business partners and employees to go paperless
through various go digital initiatives.

2023 03

313.19 Gallons
of Oil Saved

04 o
02 5719 Gallons
13.61 Offset of Water Saved
tCO2e
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13.61 Number

v
of Trees Saved Q d

01 . Average Printing per Employee
817 Kg Weight SEIDEF et per Month
of Recycled Paper Printing Prior Year 350
Printing Current Year 278

Decrease in Printing o
20%
\_ Per Employee Per Month )




SOCIAL - POLICY
SIFTATEMENT,INITIATIVES
AND GOALS



During 2023, Fidelity United has been dedicated in fostering a
culture of well-being within our workplace through a series
of engaging wellness sessions. These sessions were
thoughtfully curated to address various aspects of our
employees’ holistic health, providing valuable insights and
practical tools to enhance their overall well-being.

The wellness sessions conducted underscore our
commitment to creating a workplace that prioritizes the
well-being of our employees. We believe that a healthy and
happy workforce is not only more productive but also more
engaged and resilient. As we continue to invest in the holistic
wellness of our team, we look forward to withessing the
positive impact on both individuals and our collective work
environment.

Fidelity United recently took part in the Dubai Run 2023,
contributing to the vibrant atmosphere of health and
wellness in the heart of Dubai. Our participation in the run
reflects our commitment to promoting an active and healthy
lifestyle among our employees. The Dubai Run was not just a
race; it was a celebration of community, well-being, and the
spirit of unity. By joining this event, we demonstrated our
dedication to fostering a culture of fithess and camaraderie
within our organization.

We are thrilled to share the resounding success of our recent
Annual Sports Tournament, where employees showcased
exceptional talent, sportsmanship, and a true sense of team
spirit. The event was a testament of our commitment in
encourage a healthy and vibrant workplace culture.

#BECONFI

FEECONFIDENT

Annual Sports
Tournament
Football




Fidelity United believes in creating awareness for the
most prevalent types of cancers amongst men and
women. The aim of the campaign is to create cancer
awareness while dispeling the myths that people
believe, inform them about the signs and symptoms,
and importance of screening for early detection. It is also
vital to emphasize the importance of a healthy lifestyle.
Through October and November, several awareness
sessions for employees and clients were conducted for
Breast Cancer and Prostate Cancer. In support of our
solidarity for patients and survivors, Fidelity United
employees wore pink for Breast Cancer and blue for
Prostate Cancer days.

| e -
IPROSTATE
CANCER

-

BREAST
CANCER

AWARENESS
MONTH <




BLOOD DONATION

‘Your blood donation can save a life’. WORLD BLOOD
As part of our continued efforts towards people happiness and a healthier D o N 0 R
community, Fidelity United, in association with Dubai Health Authority, organized a —DAY—

blood donation drive. Enthusiastic employees from all Fidelity United branches,
colleagues from the industry and good samaritans from surrounding offices came
together, taking another step towards their own well-being and building a robust
society.




COMMUNITY SERVICE

During the blessed month of Ramadan, Fidelity United in
association with Model Service Society celebrated the joy of
giving back to our community members at the DIP Labor
Camp.

Fidelity United family joined hands to organize, pack and
deliver essential food items to more than 150 families in need,
across UAE. We are humbled by this initiative and grateful to
be able to bring a smile on so many faces.

Fidelity United
Participates in the SmartCUP:

Cricket for a Cause

Proud to be part of Smartlife’s mission for a better tomorrow.
Fidelity United participated in the Smartcup Cricket
Tournament, making a positive impact on the lives of
blue-collar workers.

s " ‘|,
m BAMADAMN



Gender pay ratio and diversity

The prime objective of Fidelity United equal opportunity
policy is to ensure that all employees are treated fairly
and consistently in all aspects of employment. This
includes activities relating to recruitment, training and
development, performance management and the
day-to-day management of its employees.

Fidelity United adopts a grading structure for making decisions
about employee pay and progression that are fair for all employees.
The jobs are placed in order of hierarchy and arranged into a series
of grades.

Fidelity United ensure that we are recruiting talented men and
women based on the objective criteria. The decisions about
career development opportunities are made and we feel
confident that appointments are made on merit and not on
personal preference or bias.

We ensure performance reviews are conducted against the
guarantee that the development and progression of talented
employees is not limited by their gender.

Employee Turnover

The employee turnover rate within the organization serves as a
key indicator of workforce stability and organizational health. By
analyzing trends in employee turnover, we gain valuable insights
into areas such as employee satisfaction, retention strategies, and
overall organizational effectiveness. Our commitment to
understanding and addressing employee turnover aligns with our
governance principles, ensuring that we maintain a resilient and
engaged workforce capable of driving sustainable growth and
success.

At Fidelity United, monitoring employee turnover serves as a
critical component of our governance framework. Understanding
the patterns and reasons behind employee departures enables us
to implement effective retention strategies and maintain a stable
and engaged workforce. By prioritizing employee satisfaction and
retention, we uphold our commitment to fostering a resilient
organizational culture conducive to long-term success and
sustainability.

Non-Discrimination

Fidelity United upholds the principle that all employees are entitled
to work in an environment devoid of harassment or
discrimination. Regardless of sex, gender, race, religious beliefs or
creed, political opinion, marital status, disability, age, or nationality,
we are steadfast in our commitment in fostering an inclusive and
respectful workplace.

We are dedicated to maintaining a professional and equitable
environment for both our employees and customers. It is our firm
commitment to ensure that every individual, whether engaged in
business with the company or a member of our workforce, is
always treated with dignity and respect.

Global Health and Safety

We are deeply committed to ensuring the health and safety of our
employees, customers, and communities worldwide. We adhere
to rigorous global health and safety standards in all aspects of our
operations to create a secure working environment. Our proactive
measures and strict adherence to regulations aim to prevent
accidents and promote well-being. We actively support initiatives
addressing public health challenges and prioritize the safety of all
stakeholders.



Child and Forced Labour

Fidelity United acknowledges the widespread prevalence of
child and forced labor globally. In alignment with our core
value of treating all individuals with dignity and respect, we
have instituted the following principles:

1. All applicants must meet a minimum age
requirement of 18 years. The verification of age will be
conducted by the Human Capital Department through
official documents such as passport copies, ensuring
compliance with this criterion for employment.

2. We categorically condemn the exploitation of
children, their involvement in hazardous labor, and any
instances of physical punishment, abuse, or involuntary
servitude of workers. Fidelity United advocates for
temporary workplace internship and apprenticeship
education programs for young individuals, alongside
customary seasonal employment, under close
supervision. These arrangements are contingent upon
safeguarding the moral, safety, health, and mandatory
education of participants.

By steadfastly adhering to these principles, we
underscore our commitment to upholding ethical labor
practices and ensuring that child and forced labor find
no place within our operations or supply chain. Fidelity
United remains resolute in continuously enhancing our
protocols to eradicate these practices entirely.

Human Rights
We firmly believe that respecting human rights is a shared
responsibility that extends to every individual and entity. It is

iIncumbent upon us to uphold this responsibility by avoiding
actions that cause or contribute to adverse human rights
impacts and by addressing such impacts swiftly and
effectively when they occur.

We are committed to taking proactive measures to prevent
or mitigate adverse human rights impacts that may be
directly linked to our operations or services, as well as those
resulting from our business relationships. Even if we have not
directly contributed to these impacts, we recognize our
obligation to seek to prevent or address them.

By adhering to these principles, we demonstrate our
commitment to promoting and protecting human rights in all
aspects of our operations and business relationships. At
Fidelity United, we embrace our role in advancing human
rights and strive to continuously improve our practices to
uphold this fundamental value."

Nationalization

Fidelity United strongly supports the UAE govermment's
vision and Emiratization initiatives. We are committed to
providing opportunities for Emiratis to develop their skills and
build meaningful careers within our organization. By
participating in nationalization programs, we contribute to the
growth and prosperity of the UAE and its people.

Community Investment

Fidelity United strongly believes in investing the growth of the
community. In FY 2023, we have contributed towards Dubai
Cares, Smart Life and conducted various other programs
such as Blood Donation Drives and EID Distribuitions.



GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE AND
POLICY STATEMENT



Board Diversity

Our board of directors now proudly boasts gender
diversity, reflecting our commitment in fostering a
dynamic and balanced leadership team.

Diverse perspectives drive innovation and excellence,
and we believe that by championing gender diversity, we
enhance our ability to navigate challenges and seize
opportunities. This achievement is a testament of our
dedication to equality, and we look forward to the
continued positive impact this diversity will bring to our
organization.

Governance Structure

a. Board Level

The Board of Fidelity United has structured various
committees to manage and look after the affairs of the
company. These are designed considering the most
appropriate governance structure with the size of the
company.

b. Management Level

The governance structure at Management Level is
created by keeping in mind the strong growth of the
company, our future aspirations and the necessary risk
management needed to operate the company.




Governance
Our governance structure is created by keeping in mind the strong growth of the company and our future aspirations.
The structure is split into two main accountabilities defined at Board and Management level.

Audit Committee

02 Risk/AML Committee

O 3 Investment Committee

04 Remuneration Committee




Executive Committee

Technical Review

Monthly Business Review

Quarterly Business Review

| 06 Risk Committee
]

Reinsurance Business Review

MANAGEMENT
LEVEL

Technological and Digitalization Review

Research and Development

Enterprise Risk Management
11 Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

Employee Engagement Committee



Ethics and Prevention of Corruption

We maintain unwavering commitment to ethical conduct and
the prevention of corruption in all aspects of our operations. Our
core values dictate integrity, transparency, and accountability,
which guide our actions and decisions.

We firmly uphold ethical standards, adhering to laws and
regulations governing anti-corruption measures. Our policies and
procedures are designed to prevent bribery, extortion, and any
form of corrupt practices, both within our organization and in our
interactions with external stakeholders.

We provide ongoing training and awareness programs to
ensure that all employees understand their responsibilities in
upholding ethical standards and preventing corruption.
Additionally, we encourage the reporting of any suspected
unethical behavior through our confidential whistleblower hotline.
Fidelity United is dedicated to conducting business with honesty,
fairness, and integrity. We believe that by maintaining a culture of
ethics and transparency, we not only protect our reputation but
also contribute to the trust and confidence of our stakeholders
and the communities we serve.

Data Privacy

Fidelity United respects its customers fundamental right to
privacy, and we commit to take great care in using, disclosing,
processing and safeguarding their Personal Data.

Fidelity United has developed a Data Protection Policy that aims
to ensure that we adopt and observe appropriate standards for
personal data protection in compliance with the applicable Local
Data Protection Regulations.

While our Data Protection sets out the general principles that
govern the collection, use, and disclosure of our customers’

personal information, the below clarify, how we protect personal
information.
The integrity, confidentiality, and security of the personal
information are important to us. That's why we strictly enforce
our Data Protection Policy within Fidelity United and have
Implemented technical, organizational, and physical security
measures that are designed to protect the Personal Data. from
unauthorized or fraudulent access, alteration, disclosure, misuse,
and other unlawful activities.
We also put in effect the following safeguards:
- We have a separate data protection policy.
All our Contracts with the vendors includes a data protection
clause.
We keep and protect the information using a secured server
behind a firewall, encryption, and security controls.
We make sure to have Consent in place while involved with
personal data.
We keep information only for as long as required by Law and
necessary for us to (a) provide the products and services that
you avail from us, (b) for our legitimate business purposes,
and (c) to comply with applicable pertinent laws and
regulations.
We restrict access to the information only to authorized
personnel who are trained to handle the information with
strict confidentiality and only for the required purpose.
We undergo regular audits and rigorous testing of our
infrastructure’s security protocols to ensure the data is
always protected.
We promptly notify the concerned data subject, when
sensitive  personal information that may, under the
circumstances, be used to enable identity fraud are
reasonably believed to have been acquired by an
unauthorized person;



Sustainable Reporting

Fidelity United publishes integrated report on annual
basis comprising of:

a. Board Report,

b. Financial Statements,

c. Corporate Governance Report, and

d. Sustainability Report

These reports are prepared keeping in mind the
regulatory requirement and best practices across the
region.




STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT



Employees

At Fidelity United, we believe our employees are the
cornerstone of the company. Attracting, developing and
retaining the right talent for the right job is the foundation
on which great businesses thrive. We have driven
initiatives to ensure that our employees are happy,
healthy, and motivated to ensure a good experience for
our customers. Our dynamic and diverse company
culture advocates communication, transparency and
accentuates employee engagement. For this reason, we
have built a culture based on diversity, collaboration,
innovation, challenges and growth - all the while
preserving work-life balance.

Our priorities are:

a. Employee Engagement

b. Diversity and Inclusion

c. Talent Management

d. Learning and Development
e. Reward and Recognition

f. Employee Wellbeing

g. Health and Safety



Regulators

In today's ever-evolving world, debating whether to
Incorporate sustainability into our business strategy is no
longer an option. We must work together with companies,
governments, and organizations to come up with the best
sustainable solutions and drive positive change, by doing the
following:

a. Communicate regularly with the regulators

b. Participate in social events

c. Contribute to donations and volunteering.

Industry Management

Team of Fidelity United is part of various committees in
the Insurance Association. The team is very well
represented in the Finance Committee, Motor Committee,
Legal Committee and Higher Technical Committee, where
they play a significant role in proposing evolving
improvements within the industry.

Board Members and Shareholders

Fidelity United engages with the Board Members and
shareholders to commmunicate its strategy and performance
on sustainability, enabling them to make informed decisions
about their investments and our businesses to understand
their expectations. These communications are through
Regular Board meeting and Annual General Meetings of
shareholders.



2024 OUTLOOK &
FUTURE GOALS



It is increasingly evident that continuous commercial success is linked with our commitment to sustainable development.
It is imperative for Fidelity United to encapsulate it in a clear purpose to achieve full benefits. The purpose should be
compatible with the Sustainable Development Goals and needs to shape the way the business is both designed and run.
A balance needs to be continually maintained between emphasis on short term priorities and long term commitments,
whilst understanding our stakeholder expectations.

Our commitment for the years 2024 - 2026 is to:

Environmental
a. Eliminate use of plastic cutleries
b. Reduce by reusing
c. More inclined in supporting companies with a history of sustainability/green vendors
d. Manufacture products from recycled plastic
e. Encourage sustainable transportation (shuttle bus or encourage carpooling)
f. Adopt green marketing practices (green labeling)
g. Conduct awareness sessions for our employees on green technology




Social
a. Wellness webinars
b. Wellness programs
c. Cleaning drives
d. Blood donation drive
e. Share our earnings
f. Earth hour
g. Community Service



Proposed contribution towards our initiatives:

Initiatives Year 2023 Year 2024 Year 2025

Cleaning drive (No./year) 1 2 2
Blood donation (% increase from previous year) 5% 5% 5%
Share our earnings (AED/policy) 1 1 1
Earth hour 12% 14% 16%
Save the trees (say no to papers) 10% 10% 10%
Save the ocean (say no to plastic) 2% 2% 2%
Community Service 2 2 2
_ Wellness Program 1 2 2 )

Governance
a. Strengthen the review and audit process to
ensure best practices in respect of controls
are in place for sustainable bottom line.
b. Enhance the effectiveness of ERM structure
in line with the growth of the company.
c. Maintain the solvency ratio and review
the appetite of the company at regular intervals.
d. Working with strong rated Reinsurers.
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Statement of the procedures taken to complete the corporate governance system during 2023.

The Board of Directors of United Fidelity Insurance Company (hereafter referred to as “Fidelity United™)
strongly upholds robust corporate governance principles. Recognizing corporate governance as
essential for achieving sustainable long-term growth and prosperity, the Board is dedicated to
enhancing shareholder value while considering the interests of stakeholders such as employees,
clients, suppliers, business partners, and the broader community where Fidelity United operates.

Corporate governance is not merely a destination but an ongoing journey towards business
development and excellence. In line with this, the Board has consistently upgraded corporate
governance standards at Fidelity United throughout 2023, adhering to the Central Bank Corporate
Governance Regulation for Insurance Companies and in line with the institutional and other regulatory
requirements prescribed by the Securities and Commodities Authority, including in particular the
Authority's Chairman of the Board of Directors' Resolution No. (3/R.M) of 2020 Concerning Corporate
Discipline and Governance Standards of Public Joint Stock Companies. The senior management
collaborate to fortify the internal control system, recognized as pivotal within the corporate governance
framework of Fidelity United

Fidelity United has established a corporate governance framework to guide its operations internally and
externally, ensuring the existence of a precise framework that delineates the responsibilities and duties
of the board of directors and executive management while safeguarding the rights of all stakeholders
involved.

The main components of the “Corporate Governance framework” embedded with Fidelity United consists of

the following:
Corporate Governance Framework at Fidelity United
Board of Directors Board Committees Internal Control Functions
0 Active 0 Audit Committee 0 Compliance
0 Independent 00 Remuneration and Nomination Committee O Risk Management
O Non-executive O Investment Committee 0 Internal Audit
0 Risk Committee 1 Actuary

Page | 2



Statement of the ownership and transactions of board members, their spouses, and their children
during 2023

The members of the Board of Directors, their spouses, and their children did not deal in the company's
securities during 2023.

Shares Total
Position/ owned as Total sale e A
Relationship of transaction t::msaction
31/12/2023
Chairman of
1 gﬁ":;‘:;h Alrfg:ﬂ“asr‘ Ahmed | Boord of 9.38% N/A N/A
Directors
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Board of Directors formation and related information

Category The period he spentasa  Their memberships [Their positions in any
(executive, non- member of the company’s and positions in any |other important .
executive and board of directors from the other joint stock regulatory, governmental |
independent), date of his first election companies or commercial positions '
Mr. Nawwaf Non-Independent Since 2002 N/A IN/A
Ghubash Ahmed Non-executive
Ghubash Almerri
Mr. Ricardo Non-Independent Since 2017 IN/A IN/A
Maurice Suleiman | Non-executive
Mr. Khalid Rashid | Non-Independent Re-elected in 2017 INJA N/A
Humaid Al Non-executive
Mazrouei
Mr. Mohamed Non-Independent Since 2017 RAK Properties [N/A
Ghobash Ahmed Non-executive
Ghobash Al Marri (Board Member)
Mr. Nadeem Independent Since 2017 INJA INJA
Ahmed Irfan .
Ahmed Non-executive
Mrs. Lara Sleiman | Non-Independent Since 2023 N/A IN/A
Non-executive
Mr. Fardan Ali Al Independent Since 2023 NJA N/A
Fardan Non-executive
Mr. Fadi Cherkawi | Non-Independent member until 04/27/2023 and N/A 1A
Non-executive did not submit his candidacy
for membership in the new
Board.
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- Mr. Majid Sultan Al | Independent non- member until 04/27/2023 and [N/A N/A
Mail executive did not submit his candidacy

for membership in the new

Board.

Board of Directors experience and qualifications.
Mr. Nawwaf Ghubash Ahmed Ghubash AlMerri (Chairman)

Mr. Nawwaf currently holds the position of the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. Mr. Nawwaf
Ghobash is a member of the Board of Directors of the Company since 2002. He holds a bachelor's degree in
business administration from the University of the United Arab Emirates - Al Ain. In the past years, he was
nominated a delegated member of the company’s board of directors: Currently, he holds the following positions:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Dubai Refreshments Company from March 2023 to date.

- Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ghobash Trade and Investment Ltd. from 1999 to date.

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of SEDCO - Jordan - Dubai from 2021 to date.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Emitac since 1999 to date.

- Member of the Board of Directors and member of the Executive Committee of the Sahara Center in Sharjah
from 2000 to date.

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of RAK Pharma - Bangladesh between 2015 and November 2018.

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of the United Fidelity Insurance Company from 2017 to date.

- Member of the Board of Directors of the United Fidelity Insurance Company from 2002 until 2017.

- Managing Director of United Fidelity Insurance Company from 2011 until 2017.

- The second vice president and member of the board of directors of the Ras Al Khaimah Chamber of
Commerce and Industry from January 2007 until December 20089.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Gulf Pharmaceutical Industries Company (Julphar) in Ras Al-Khaimah
between 2005 and 2017.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Ras Al Khaimah Real Estate Company from 2005 until 2012.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Ras Al Khaimah Real Estate Company since 2018 till 2020.

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Emirates Insurance Association from January 2010 until 2013.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Anwar Holding Company (PSC) in the Sultanate of Oman from 2003

until 2014.
- Member of the Board of Directors of Addax Bank in the Kingdom of Bahrain from January 2010 until 2012.

Page | 5



Mr. Ricardo Maurice Suleiman (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Ricardo currently holds the position of the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors. He holds an ISM
certificate since 1968 from the International School of Marketing, United States of America, and an international
Diploma in Marketing.

He held the following positions:

- Sales Representative at NCR Corporation, 1964.

- Sales Executive at American International Underwriters AlU, 1968.

- Sales Manager at Fidelity Assurance and Reinsurance, 1969. He acquired the Company after 25 years.

- Associate Agency Manager at the American Life Insurance (ALICO) as of 1971.

- Chairman of Fidelity Assurance & Reinsurance Company SAL, 1994,

- Shareholder of Rymco - General Agents of GMC, Nissan and Infiniti motors in Lebanon.

- Was elected by the General Assembly held on 02/08/2017 as a member of the Board of Directors of United
Fidelity Insurance Company.

Mr. Khalid Rashid Humaid Al Mazrouei (Member of the Board)

Mr. Khalid holds a Bachelor's degree from Emirates University in Accounting and Information Systems. He
worked for 5 years for HSBC Bank and another five years for the Department of Economic Development -
Government of Dubai. He currently holds the following positions:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Bahri and Al Mazroui Company.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Dubai Tourism and Travel Group.

- General Manager of Gulf Wings Travel.

- Businessman and owner of private companies.

- Re-elected by the General Assembly on 02/08/2017 as a member of the Board of Directors of the United

Fidelity Insurance Company.

Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri (Board Member)

He holds a higher diploma in Business Administration from the Higher Colleges of Technology (1993 - 1998) in
the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah. He completed several banking, administrative and executive courses at
Emirates Institute of Banking, Etisalat Academy, and the National Bank of Abu Dhabi. He held the following
positions:

- Stock Trading Manager - Abu Dhabi Financial Services, 2009-2011
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- Vice President - Emirates Football Club - Ras Al Khaimah 2011-2012

- Relationship Manager - National Bank of Abu Dhabi for Private Banking Services 2011-2014

- BOD member in RAK Properties from 03/04/2021

- He was elected for the first time by the General Assembly held on 02/08/2017 as a member of the Board of
Directors of United Fidelity Insurance Company.

Mr. Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Ahmed (Board Member)

He was first elected by the General Assembly in 2017 as a member of the Board of Directors of United Fidelity
Insurance Company. He holds a master's degree in business administration from the University of Aligarh,
India, and has held the following positions:

- Since 2012 - to date, Investment Manager - Ghobash Trading and Investment Company.

- Since 1986 - 1992: Finance Executive at Pradeshiya Industrial & Investment Corporation of U.P. Ltd.

- Since 1992-1995: Head of Business at Sterling Securities Limited, Delhi.

- Since 1995 - 1998: Vice President of Fortess Financial Services Limited, Mumbai.

- From March 1999 to December 2002: Manager at Abu Dhabi Investment Company (ADIC), "Invest AD".

- From January 2003 to February 2008: Director of HSBC Private Equity Middle East (HSBCPE).

- From March 2008 to April 2012: Investment Partner in BNP Paribas Frist Private Equity Fund, Bahrain.

- Since 2008: Member of the Board of Directors of BNP Paribas Frist, Private Equity Fund in and a member of
the Board of Directors of the Fund Company and the Fund Manager since its incorporation.

- May 2012 to August 2016: Member of the Board of Directors of Private Portfolio Companies of BNP Paribas
Frist, Private Equity Fund.

- December 2012 to date: Group Investment Director - Ghobash Trading & Investment Limited.

Ms. Lara Sleiman

She was first elected by the General Assembly in 2023 as a member of the Board of Directors of United Fidelity
Insurance Company. She holds a master's degree in business administration, and B.A., Business Marketing
from Lebanese American University, and has held the following positions:

- Board Member and Vice President — Administration and Projects Development - Fidelity Assurance &
Reinsurance Co. SAL (Lebanon) 2018 — Present

- Vice President — Human Resources and Administration - Fidelity Assurance & Reinsurance Co. SAL
(Lebanon) 2009 — 2017

- Human Resources Manager - Fidelity Assurance & Reinsurance Co. SAL (Lebanon) 2004 — 2008

Page | 7



Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan

He was first elected by the General Assembly in 2023 as a member of the Board of Directors of United Fidelity
Insurance Company. He holds a Certified Diploma in Real Estate Management from Dubai Real Estate
Institute, and Bachelor of Arts in Business Administration, The American University in Dubai, and has held the

following positions:

- Board member - Al Fardan Group 2017 — Present.

- Senior Executive Officer and Managing Director -Embassy Capital Limited 2020- Present.

- Head of hospitality - Equitativa Limited 2017 — 2020

- Senior Investment Manager, Real Estate - Emirates NBD 2011- 2017

Female representation percentage in the Board of Directors for 2023

Female representation in the Board of Directors is one female out of seven Board Members.

Number percentage

Board members - Male

6

86%

Board members - Female

1

14%

Remunerations paid to the board members for the year 2022:

None
Remuneration proposed for the Board for 2023:

None
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Details of the allowances received by Board Members for attending the Board committees’ meetings for
the fiscal year of 2023.

Steering Committee

Allowance value Meetings number
1 Mr. Maurice Sleiman 5000 1
2 IMr. Nadeem Arfan Ahmad (5000 1
3 Mr. Mohamed Ghobash 5000 1
4 Mr. Khalid Mazrouei o000 1
5 Mr. Fadi Cherkawi 5000 1

Investment Committee

Allowance value Meetings number
1 r. Khalid Mazrouei 15,000 3
2  [Mr. Nadeem Arfan Ahmad 20,000 4
3  |Mr. Mohamed Ghobash 20,000 4
4 |Mr. Fardan Ali AlFardan 10,000 2
- IMr. Maurice Sleiman 10,000 2
- ‘Mr. Majid Sultan Al Mail 10,000 2
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Audit Committee

Allowance value Meetings number
1 Mr. Nadeem Arfan Ahmad 45,000 3
2 Mr. Marwan Istambouly 20,000 u
3 1Mr. Fardan Ali AlFardan 15,000 3
- r\nr. Ali Al Mazroei 15,000 1
- rVIr. Alok Nawani 5,000 1

Remuneration Committee

Allowance value Meetings number
1 Mrs. Lara Sleiman 5,000.00 1
2 'Mr. Mohamed Ghobash 10,000.00 2
3 rVIr. Fardan Ali AIFardan 5,000.00 1
- ‘Mr, Maurice Sleiman 5,000.00 1
- ‘Mr. Majid Sultan Al Mail 5,000.00 1

Risk Committee

Allowance value Meetings number
1 Mr. Fardan Ali AlFardan 10,000.00 2
2 r\nr. Nadeem Arfan Ahmad 10,000.00 2
3 FMrs. Lara Sleiman 10,000.00 2
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Details of the additional allowances, salaries, or fees received by a member of the Board of Directors,
other than committee attendance allowances, and their reasons.

Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Ahmed has been paid in 2023 AED 80,000 as investment incentive fees in return of his
support related to investment services provided to the Company during 2022,

Number of Board meetings held during the fiscal year 2023 and the relevant details

Name of the board

Board Meetings

member Meeting 1 Meeting 2 Meeting 3 | Meeting 4 Meeting 5
07/02/2023 15/03/2023 04/08/2023 | 11/10/2023 13/11/2023

Nawwaf Ghubash Ahmed Present Present Present Present Present

Ghubash Almerri

Ricardo Maurice Suleiman Present Present Present Present Present

Khalid Rashid Humaid Al Present Present Present Present Present

Mazrouei

Mohamed Ghobash Present Present Present Present Present

Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri

Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Present Present Present Present Present

Ahmed

Lara Sleiman N/A N/A Present Present Present

Fardan Ali Al Fardan NfA N/A Present Present Absent

Fadi Cherkawi Present Present N/A N/A, N/A
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Maijid Sultan Al Mail Present Present N/A N/A N/A

N/A: Not a Board Member at the date of the Meeting

Number of Board of Directors decisions passed during the fiscal year 2023, indicating their dates.

The board of directors passed 2 decisions by circulation in 2023 dated 27/03/2023 and 15/05/2023.

Audit Committee:

Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system, review of its work
mechanism and effectiveness

Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad, Audit Committee Chairman, herby acknowledges his responsibility for the
Committee system within the Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

Names of the Audit Committee Members, and their Competencies and Duties.

No. Name Capacity

1 Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad Chairman

-y Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member

3 Mr. Marwan Istamboli Member

- Mr. Ali Al Mazroei Was the Chairman till 27/04/2023
- Mr. Alok Nawani Was a member till 27/04/2023
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Tasks and functions of the Auditing Committee:

1) Develop and implement the contracting policy with the external auditor. Submit a report to the Board of
Directors identifying the issues that it considers important to take an action thereon, with
recommendations concerning the steps to be taken.

2) Follow-up and monitor the independence of the external auditor. Submit a report to the Board of Directors
specifying the issues that it considers important to take action thereon, with recommendations concerning
the steps to be taken.

3) Monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements and reports (Annually, semi-annually and

quarterly), and observe them as part of its normal work during the year and after closing the accounts in

any quarterly period, with special focus on the following:

Any changes in accounting policies and practices

Highlight aspects subject to the Board of Directors' discretion

Significant amendments resulting from the audit

Assuming the Company's going concerns

Adherence to the rules of incorporation, disclosure and other legal requirements related to the preparation

of financial reports.

4) Coordination with the Company's Management, Executive Management, Chief Financial Officer or the
manager responsible for the same tasks in the Company in order to

5) perform its duties. The Committee shall have a meeting with the auditors of the Company at least once a
year.

6) Consider any items that are deemed important and unusual or should be mentioned in such reports and
accounts, and shall give due attention to any matters raised by the

Company's Chief Financial Officer, the manager responsible for the same duties, the compliance officer or
the auditors.

7) Review the financial controls, internal controls and risk management systems of the Company.

8) Discuss the internal control system with the Management and ensure that it fuffills its duty to establish an
effective internal control system.

] - ] L [ ]

9) Consider the results of the main investigations conducted on the internal control matters, as assigned to it
by the Board of Directors or performed at the initiative of the Committee and the approval of the
Management.

10)Make sure effective coordination is in place between the internal auditors of the Company and the
external auditors. Ensure availability of the resources necessary for the internal audit body, and review
and control the effectiveness of that body.

11)Review the Company's financial and accounting policies and procedures.
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12)Review the external auditor's letters, its action plan and any material queries submitted by the auditor to
the Executive Management regarding accounting records, financial accounts or control systems, and their
response and approval to the same.

13)Ensure that the Board of Directors responds in a timely manner to the clarifications and material issues
raised in the external auditor's letter.

14)Establish a reporting structure that enables Company's staff to report any potential irregularities in
financial reports, internal controls or other matters under complete confidentiality; and set the steps
necessary to ensure independent and fair investigations of such vioclations.

15)Monitor the extent to which the Company complies with the rules of professional conduct.

16)Ensure the application of the rules related to its functions and the powers entrusted to it by the Board of
Directors.

17)Submit reports to the Board of Directors on the matters listed in this item.

18)Consider of any other matters determined by the Board of Directors.

Number of meetings held by the Audit Committee during 2023

Audit Committee

Meeting 1 Meeting 2 Meeting 3 ‘ Meeting 4
Name of the member

25/02/2023 23/06/2023 03/08/2023 | 09/11/2023
Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Ahmed N/A Present Present Present
Fardan Ali Al Fardan N/A Present Present Present
Marwan Istamboli Present Present Present Present
Alok Nawani Present N/A N/A N/A
Ali Al Mazroei Present N/A N/A N/A

N/A: Not a Member at the date of the Meeting
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Nominations and Remuneration Committee:

Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system, review of its work
mechanism and effectiveness

Ms. Lara Sleiman, Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman, herby acknowledges her
responsibility for the Committee system within the Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its
effectiveness.

Names of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, and their Competencies and Duties.

No. Name Capacity

1 Ms. Lara Sleiman Chairman

2 Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member

3 Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri Member

- Maurice Sleiman (Till 27/04/2023) Was a Member till 27/04/2023
- Majid Sultan Al Mail (Till 27/04/2023) Was a Member till 27/04/2023

Statement of the Committee's function and the tasks assigned to it:

The Committee shall carry out all the prescribed functions and tasks, in accordance with the relevant rules
and resolutions, including the resolutions of the Securities and Commodities Authority, so the main tasks will

be as follows:

1. Establish a policy on nominations for the Board of Directors and Executive Management, taking into
account gender diversity within the composition, encouraging
women through incentive and training programs. The Committee shall provide the Authority with a copy

of this policy and any amendments thereto.
2. Organize and follow up the procedures for nomination to the Board of Directors, in accordance with the

applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of the resolutions of the Securities and Commodities

Authority.
3. Ensure the independence of independent members.
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4. Prepare and annually review the policy for the granting of bonuses, benefits, incentives, and salaries for
the members of the Board of Directors of the Company and its employees, and make sure that the
bonuses and benefits granted to the Senior Executive Management are reasonable and commensurate
with the performance of the Company.

9. Perform annual review of the skills required for Board membership, and prepare a description of the
capabilities and qualifications required for membership of the Board of

6. Directors, including the time required to be allocated by a Board member to the proceedings of the Board
of Directors.

7. Review the Board structure and make recommendations regarding possible changes.

8. ldentify the Company's needs of competencies at the level of senior executive management and
employees, as well as the bases of their selection.

9. Any other matters determined by the Board of Directors or provided for in the relevant legislation and
resolutions.

Number of meetings held by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee during 2023

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Meeting 1 Meeting 2

Name of the member ! N
14/03/2023 2610712023
Ms. Lara Sleiman N/A Present
Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan N/A Present
Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash Present Present
Al Marri
Maurice Sleiman (Till 27/04/2023) Present N/A
Majid Sultan Al Mail (Till 27/04/2023) Present N/A

N/A: Not a Member at the date of the Meeting
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Steering Committee

Steering Committee Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system,
review of its work mechanism and effectiveness

Mr. Fadi Cherkawi, Investment Committee Chairman, herby acknowledges his responsibility for the
Committee system within the Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

Names of the Investment Committee and their Competencies and Duties.

No. Name Capacity

1 Mr. Fadi Salah Al Deen Cherkawi Chairman

2 Mr. Khalid Rashid Humaid Al Mazrouei Member

3 Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash | Member
Al Marri

4 Mr. Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Ahmed Member

5 Mr. Maurice Ricardo Suleiman Member

Number of meetings held by the Investment Committee during 2023:

Steering Committee

Meeting 1
Name of the member

30/01/2023
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Mr. Fadi Salah Al Deen Cherkawi Present
Mr. Khalid Rashid Humaid Al Mazrouei Present
Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri Present
Mr. Nadeem Ahmed Irfan Ahmed Present
Mr. Maurice Ricardo Suleiman Present

Investmeni Committee:

Investment Committee Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system,
review of its work mechanism and effectiveness

Mr. Khalid Rashid Al Mazrouei, Investment Committee Chairman, herby acknowledges his responsibility for
the Committee system within the Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

Names of the Investment Committee and their Competencies and Duties.

No. Name Capacity

1 Mr. Khalid Rashid Al Mazrouei Chairman

2 Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad Member

3 Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Ahmed Ghobash | Member

Al Marri

4 Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Member

- Maurice Sleiman Was a Member till 27/04/2023
- Majid Sultan Al Mail Was a Member till 27/04/2023

statement of the Committee's function and the tasks assigned to it:
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The Investment Committee is responsible for following up on the Company's investments.

Number of meetings held by the Investment Committee during 2023

Investment Committee

Meeting 1 Meeting 2 Meeting 3 ‘ Meeting 4
Name of the member |

30/01/2023 16/02/2023 16/06/2023 | 23/11/2023
Mr. Khalid Rashid Al Present Present Present Absent
Mazrouei
Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Present Present Present Present
Ahmad
Mr. Mohamed Ghobash Present Present Present Present
Ahmed Ghobash Al Marri
Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan N/A N/A Present Present
Maurice Sleiman Present Present N/A N/A
Majid Sultan Al Mail Present Present N/A N/A

N/A: Not a Member at the date of the Meeting

Risk Committee:

Risk Committee Chairman Acknowledgement of his responsibility for the Committee system, review of
its work mechanism and effectiveness.
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Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan, Risk Committee Chairman, his responsibility for the Committee system within the
Company, reviewing its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness.

Names of the members of the Risk Committee, and statement of its powers and tasks assigned thereto.

No. Name Capacity
1 Mr. Fardan Ali Al Fardan Chairman
2 Mr. Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad Member
3 Ms. Lara Sleiman Member

Statement of the Committee's function and the tasks assigned to it:

1. Develop a comprehensive risk management strategy and policies that are consistent with the nature and
volume of the Company activities, monitor its implementation, review, and update it, based on the
company internal and external changing factors.

2. ldentify and maintain an acceptable level of risks that the Company may face and ensure that the
Company does not exceed such level.

3. Supervise the risk management framework of the company and evaluate the effectiveness of the
framework and mechanisms of identifying and monitoring the risks that threaten the company, in order to
identify areas of inadequacy and adequacy.

4. Provide guidance to management, as needed, to assist them in improving their risk management
practices and / or mitigating certain risks, including the presence of qualified management personnel to
carry out risk management activities effectively.

5. Obtain assurance from the executive management and internal audit that the risk processes and systems

operate effectively with appropriate controls, in addition to compliance with approved policies.

. Prepare detailed reports on the level of exposure to risks and recommended procedures for managing

such risks, along with submitting them to the Board.

. Make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to risk management.

. Ensure of the availability of adequate resources and systems for risk management.

. Report regularly to the Board on the Company risk profile and promptly inform the Board of any significant

changes in the volume of the risk.
10. Verify that the risk management personnel are apart from the activities that may expose the Company to
risks.
11. Review any matters raised by the Audit Committee that may affect the Company risk management.
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12.Review appointment, performance and replacement of the chief risk officer and monitor the effectiveness
of the risk management unit in general.

Number of meetings held by the Risk Committee during 2023

Risk Committee

Meeting 1 Meeting 2
Name of the member

12/09/2023 09/11/2023
Fardan Ali Al Fardan Present Present
Lara Sleiman Present Present
Nadeem Ahmad Irfan Ahmad Present Present

N/A: Not a Member at the date of the Meeling

Duties and functions of the Board of Directors carried out by the Executive Management
pursuant to authorization from the Board to the Management, including the period and delegation

of authority and powers.

The CEO performs his duties pursuant to the authority delegated to him by the Chairman by
virtue of a notarized power of Attorney.

Name of the
delegated person

Delegation validity Delegation duration

Manage the Company's day-to-day regular
Bilal Mohammad business in technical and administrative
Monir Adhami matters and manage the operational and
insurance activities.

Undefined / until revocation
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Details of the transactions made with the related parties (stakeholders) during 2023.

No.

Name of Entity

Explanation of the nature of the

relationship

Relationshi
p type

Transaction
volume in
AED

1. The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
ABAN INVESTMENT Company Limited -Mohamed 438,374.63
LLG. -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
2. The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
ARABIAN ETHICALS CO. | Company Limited -Mohamed
(ETHIX) -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 741,267.57
3. The shareholder: The Board Direct
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Premiums
BAHRI & MAZROEI Real Estate One Mazrouei
TECHNICAL SYSTEMS Person Company
CO(L.LC) LLC 2,160,279.08
4. The shareholder: The Board Direct
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Premiums
Real Estate One Mazrouei
BAHRI & MAZROEI Person Company
TRADING CO. LLC LEG 1,883,086.92
5. The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
COMPUTER NETWORK | and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
SYSTEMS EST ABU Company Limited -Mohamed
DHABI -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 713,442.01
6. | GHUBASH TRADING & The shareholder: The Board Direct
INVESTMENT CO. LTD. | -Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
LLC and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash 369,559.55
Company Limited -Mohamed
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-Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
7. The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
GHUBASH TRADING Company Limited -Mohamed
GROUP -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 42.361.51
8. The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
GULF COMMERCIAL Company Limited -Mohamed
GROUP EST. -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 844.281.26
9. The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
GULF COMMERCIAL and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
GROUP Company Limited -Mohamed
ESTABLISHMENT -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 993,412.49
10 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
MAKEEN PROPERTIES | Company Limited -Mohamed
(L.L.C) -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 266,118.53
11 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
Company Limited -Mohamed
MODERN LAUNDRY -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 116,614.72
12 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
PRIME HOSPITALITY Company Limited -Mohamed
L.LC -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 141,164.27

Page | 23




PERSON COMPANY

Real Estate One

13 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
COMPUTER NETWORK | Company Limited -Mohamed
SYSTEMS EST. -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 2,827.854.25
14 The shareholder: The Board Direct
OMAN COMPUTER -Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
NETWORK SYSTEMS and Investment -Mawwaf Ghubash
LLC Company Limited -Mohamed 391.079.57
-Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
15 The shareholder: The Board Direct
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Premiums
RASHID & OBAID Real Estate One Mazrouei
ABNAA H. ALI AL Person Company
MAZROEI LLC 5,740.91
16 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
ARABIAN ETHICALS Company Limited -Mohamed
COMPANY - ABU DHABI | -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 90,090.88
17 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
BAYAN INVESTMENT Company Limited -Mohamed
{(L.L.C.) -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 5,646.91
18 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
BAYAN INVESTMENT and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
LLC - ABU DHABI Company Limited -Mohamed
BRANCH -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 78,722.56
19| RASHED AL MAZROEI The shareholder: The Board Direct
REAL ESTATE ONE Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Premiums 17.382.35
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L.L.C Person Company Mazrouei
LLC
20 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
PYRAMIDS HEALTH Company Limited -Mohamed
SERVICES -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 521,879.10
21 The shareholder: The Board Direct
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Premiums
Real Estate One Mazrouei
KHALID RASHID Person Company
HUMAID AL MAZROUI LLC 5,113.79
22 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
Company Limited -Mohamed
NAWWAF GHOBASH -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 8,025.00
23 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
Company Limited -Mohamed
SAQR BIN GHOBASH -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 27,571.98
24 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
EMITAC ENTERPRISE Company Limited -Mohamed
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 954,146.36
25 The shareholder: The Board Direct
EMITAC HEALTHCARE -Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
SOLUTIONS L.L.C and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash 2,092,435.58
Company Limited -Mohamed
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-Lara Suleiman

-Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
26 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
EMIRATES and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
TECHNOLOGY CO Company Limited -Mohamed
(EMITAC DUBAI) L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 429,781.85
27 The shareholder: The Board Direct
-Ghobash Trade members: Premiums
Emirates Electrical & and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
Instrumentation Company | Company Limited -Mohamed
-L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 803,446.70
28 The shareholder: The Board Direct
AL HIMAYAH Fidelity Assurance & | members: Premiums
INSURANCE Renaissance S.A.L | -Ricardo Suleiman
BROKERAGE (LLC) -Lara Suleiman 2,581,412.45
29 The shareholder: The Board Direct
FIDELITY ASSURANCE Fidelity Assurance & | members: Premiums
& REINSURANCE CO. Renaissance S.A.L | -Ricardo Suleiman
SAL -Lara Suleiman 421,829.05
1 PLATINUM The shareholder: The Board Treaty
REINSURANCE Fidelity Assurance & | members: Premiums 22,542 552.71
BROKERS SAL. Renaissance S.A.L | -Ricardo Suleiman
-Lara Suleiman
1 PLATINUM The shareholder: The Board Treaty
REINSURANCE Fidelity Assurance & | members: Claims 6,655,363.76
BROKERS SAL. Renaissance S.A.L | -Ricardo Suleiman
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1 PLATINUM The shareholder: The Board Treaty
REINSURANCE Fidelity Assurance & | members: Commission | 5,797,116.45
BROKERS SAL. Renaissance S.A.L | -Ricardo Suleiman
-Lara Suleiman
1 AL HIMAYAH | The shareholder: The Board Commission
INSURANCE Fidelity Assurance & | members: paid 414,137.83
BROKERAGE (LLC) Renaissance S.A.L | -Ricardo Suleiman
-Lara Suleiman
1 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
Company Limited -Mohamed
ﬁﬂg INVESTMENT -Nawwaf Ghubash | Ghobash 357,968.49
2 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
ARABIAN ETHICALS CO. | Company Limited -Mohamed
(ETHIX) -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 769,971.54
3 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al
BAHRI & MAZRQEI Real Estate One Mazrouei
TECHNICAL SYSTEMS Person Company
CO(L.L.C) LLC 1,174,710.48
4 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al
Real Estate One Mazrouei
BAHRI & MAZROEI Person Company
TRADING CO. LLC LLC 808,180.61
5 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
COMPUTER NETWORK. | -Ghobash Trade members: 389 360.43
SYSTEMS EST ABU and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash '
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DHABI Company Limited -Mohamed
-Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
6 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
GHUBASH TRADING & and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
INVESTMENT CO. LTD. | Company Limited -Mohamed
LLC -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 552,139.13
7 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
GULF COMMERCIAL Company Limited -Mohamed
GROUP EST. -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 849,497 .60
8 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
GULF COMMERCIAL and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
GROUP Company Limited -Mohamed
ESTABLISHMENT -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 475,857.03
9 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
MAKEEN PROPERTIES | Company Limited -Mohamed
(L.L.C) -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 336,960.92
10 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
Company Limited -Mohamed
MODERN LAUNDRY -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 38,181.07
11 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
PRIME HOSPITALITY -Ghobash Trade members:
LLC and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash 95.215.00
Company Limited -Mohamed
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-Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
12 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
TAWAZON CHEMICAL Company Limited -Mohamed
COMPANY L.L.C., -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 107,827.69
14 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
COMPUTER NETWORK | Company Limited -Mohamed
SYSTEMS EST. -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 2,211,619.85
15 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
OMAN COMPUTER and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
NETWORK SYSTEMS Company Limited -Mohamed
LLC -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 1,047.00
16 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
ARABIAN ETHICALS Company Limited -Mohamed
COMPANY - ABU DHABI | -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 6,936.86
17 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
BAYAN INVESTMENT and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
LLC - ABU DHABI Company Limited -Mohamed
BRANCH -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 25,723.26
18 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
PYRAMIDS HEALTH Company Limited -Mohamed
SERVICES -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 380,414.98

Page | 29




19 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al
Real Estate One Mazrouei
KHALID RASHID Person Company
HUMAID AL MAZROUI LLC 14,700.00
20 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
EMITAC ENTERPRISE Company Limited -Mohamed
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 615,919.68
21 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
EMITAC HEALTHCARE Company Limited -Mohamed
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 1,778,453.12
22 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
EMIRATES and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
TECHNOLOGY CO Company Limited -Mohamed
(EMITAC DUBAI) L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 286,698.66
23 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
LATTICE SOFTWARE Company Limited -Mohamed
SOLUTIONS LLC -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 27,717.32
24 The shareholder: The Board Claims paid
-Ghobash Trade members:
Emirates Electrical & and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash
Instrumentation Company | Company Limited -Mohamed
-LLC -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 359,277.10
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1 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
ABAN INVESTMENT Company Limited -Mohamed
LG, -Nawwaf Ghubash | Ghobash 7,874.54
P The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
ARABIAN ETHICALS CO. | Company Limited -Mohamed
(ETHIX) -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 74,097.78
3 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
ATAYA ENTERPRISES Company Limited -Mohamed
LLC -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash (3,285.67)
4 The shareholder: The Board Balance
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Receivable
BAHRI & MAZROEI Real Estate One Mazrouei !/ (payable)
TECHNICAL SYSTEMS Person Company
CO(L.LC) LLC 490,012.18
5 The shareholder: The Board Balance
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Receivable
Real Estate One Mazrouei { (payable)
BAHRI & MAZROEI Person Company
TRADING CO. LLC LLC 817,728.79
6 COMPUTER NETWORK | The shareholder: The Board Balance
SYSTEMS EST ABU -Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
DHABI and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
Company Limited -Mohamed
-Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
(47,154.06)
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7 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
GHOBASH GROUP and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash | / (payable)
AND/OR GHOBASH Company Limited -Mohamed
FAMILY -Nawwaf Ghubash | Ghobash 12,313.00
8 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
GHUBASH TRADING & and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
INVESTMENT CO. LTD. Company Limited -Mohamed
LL.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 5,250.50
9 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
GHUBASH TRADING Company Limited -Mohamed
GROUP -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash (0.25)
10 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
GULF COMMERCIAL Company Limited -Mohamed
GROUP EST. -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 12,877.28
11 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
GULF COMMERCIAL and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash | / (payable)
GROUP Company Limited -Mohamed
ESTABLISHMENT -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 193.61
12 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash | / (payable)
MAKEEN PROPERTIES Company Limited -Mohamed
(L.L.C) -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 30,600.11
13 MODERN LAUNDRY The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
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and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable) 2,827.10
Company Limited -Mohamed
-Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
14 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
PRIME HOSPITALITY Company Limited -Mohamed
LL.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 4,223.30
16 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
COMPUTER NETWORK | Company Limited -Mohamed
SYSTEMS EST. -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 45,239.45
17 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
OMAN COMPUTER and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
NETWORK SYSTEMS Company Limited -Mohamed
LLC -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 14,455.57
18 The shareholder: The Board Balance
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Receivable
RASHID & OBAID Real Estate One Mazrouei / (payable)
ABNAA H. ALI AL Person Company
MAZROEI LLC 1,920.28
19 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
ARABIAN ETHICALS Company Limited -Mohamed
COMPANY - ABU DHABI! | -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 7,500.46
20 | BAYAN INVESTMENT The shareholder: The Board Balance
LLC - ABU DHABI -Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
BRANCH and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable) 1,155.58
Company Limited -Mohamed
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-Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash
21 The shareholder: The Board Balance
RASHED AL MAZROEI Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Receivable
REAL ESTATE ONE Real Estate One Mazrouei / (payable)
PERSON COMPANY Person Company
L.L.C LLC 2,005.50
22 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
PYRAMIDS HEALTH Company Limited -Mohamed
SERVICES -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 1,669.22
23 The shareholder: The Board Balance
Rashid Al Mazrouei | member: Khalid Al | Receivable
Real Estate One Mazrouei / (payable)
KHALID RASHID Person Company
HUMAID AL MAZROUI LLC 5,369.48
24 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash | f (payable)
Company Limited -Mohamed
SAQR BIN GHOBASH -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash (6,615.00)
25 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash | f {payable)
EMITAC ENTERPRISE Company Limited -Mohamed
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 8,664.62
26 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable
and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)
EMITAC HEALTHCARE Company Limited -Mohamed
SOLUTIONS L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 59,183.31
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27 The shareholder: The Board Balance
-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable

EMIRATES and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)

TECHNOLOGY CO Company Limited -Mohamed

(EMITAC DUBAI) L.L.C -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 0.07
28 The shareholder: The Board Balance

-Ghobash Trade members: Receivable

Emirates Electrical & and Investment -Nawwaf Ghubash |/ (payable)

Instrumentation Company | Company Limited -Mohamed

-LLC -Nawwaf Ghubash Ghobash 54.488.79
29 | PLATINUM The shareholder: The Board Balance

REINSURANCE Fidelity Assurance & | members: Receivable (10,420,117.0

BROKERS SAL. Renaissance S. AL | -Ricardo Suleiman |/ (payable) 1)

-Lara Suleiman

30 The shareholder: The Board Balance

AL HIMAYAH Fidelity Assurance & | members: Receivable

INSURANCE Renaissance S.A.L | -Ricardo Suleiman |/ (payable)

BROKERAGE (LLC) -Lara Suleiman 74,484 .91
31 The shareholder: The Board Balance

FIDELITY ASSURANCE | Fidelity Assurance & | members: Receivable

& REINSURANCE CO. Renaissance S.A.L | -Ricardo Suleiman |/ (payable)

SAL -Lara Suleiman 397,110.56
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Organizational structure and executive management
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Details and Positions of the Chief Executive Officers and the Senior Executives of the Company

Appointment Total sa!ar[esl and Total bonu_ses paid Any other cash/in-kind
e allowances paid for for 2023 (Bonuses) bonqses for 2023 or
2023 (AED) {AED) due in the future
Chief 1-Feb-18 1,948,021.36 N/A N/A
1 Executive
Officer
Chief 26-Dec-22 852,799.43 N/A N/A
2 Financial
Officer
Head of 3-Apr-16 623,064.51 N/A N/A
Commercial
Lines and
Reinsurance
Head of 24-Mar-21 573,158.52 N/A N/A
4 Consumer
Lines

Position
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Head of 15-Apr-18 597,257.65 N/A N/A
5 Employee
Benefits
6 Head of 11-Mar-20 823,290.20 N/A, N/A
Distribution

Internal Control system
Internal Audit:

Mr. Ahmed Al Qahtani, appointed as Senior Manager of the Internal Audit Department on 21/02/2022, Holds
a(n) MBA from New York Institute of Technology, USA, and is tasked with supervising the internal audit section.

Compliance:

Mrs. Jamal Ayache was appointed as senior legal and Compliance Manager on 9/12/2019. She has more than
ten years’ experience in legal and compliance. She holds a diploma in law from Lebanese University in 2004
and holds two certificates from the International Compliance Organization ICA in financial crime and AML in
2021

How the Internal Control Department deals with any major problems in the company.

The Internal Control Functions consistently assesses the effectiveness of internal controls and their alignment
with planned operations. Additionally, it monitors management's response to any identified deficiencies or
weaknesses. Oversight of the Internal Control system falls under the purview of the Board.

In 2023, Internal Control encountered no significant issues within the company.
Number of reports issued by the Internal Control Department to the company Board of Directors.
During the year 2023, they issued (8) reports dealing with:

Anti money laundering - Consumer Lines: Motor Claims - Consumer Lines: Underwriting and Operations -
Commercial Lines: Claims - Commercial Lines: Underwriting and Operations - Medical Lines: Underwriting and
Operations - Fujairah Branch - Human Capital & Administration
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Details of the violations committed during the fiscal year, the reasons and actions taken by the
company.

The Company has not commitied any violations or breaches during the year 2023. In the event of any violation
or breach, the company takes the corrective action(s) required to avoid the violation committed and is keen to
implement.

Statement of cash and in-kind contributions made by the company during 2023 for community
development and environmental conservation.

The company has donated AED 30,237.00 as per the below:

Dubai Cares:  14,943.00
Smart Life: 2,500.00
Blood Donation: 794.00
EID Distributions:12,000

External auditor:

Grant Thornton has been appointed as external auditor of 2023 by the General Assembly dated 27/04/2023.

Name of the audit office Grant Thornton

Name of partner auditor Osama El-Bakry

Number of years he spent as the company external auditor From 2019 till date

Number of years the partner auditor spent auditing the company's EEluWdiryaillKEG
accounts

Total value of audit fees for 2023 (AED) AED 323000

Details and nature of other services provided by the company XYWL
auditor (if any). In the event that there are no other services, this
shall be stated explicitly.
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The value of fees and costs for other special services other than RS
auditing the financial statements for 2023 (AED), if any. In the event
that there are no other fees, this shall be stated explicitly.

Statement of other services that an external auditor other than the gyldil=
company auditor provided during 2023 (if any). In the event that
there are no services provided by another external auditor, this shall

be stated explicitly.

Statement explaining the reservations that the company auditor included in the interim and annual
financial statements for 2023. In the event that there is no reservation, this shall be stated explicitly.

The external auditor in their audit report has drawn attention to the note 27 of the Financial Statements
stating that the company has a SCR Solvency Deficit of AED 5.1m as compared to the SCR Capital
requirement of AED 108.6m.

General information:

Statement of the Company's market share price (closing price, highest price, and lowest price) at
the end of each month during the fiscal year 2023.

Closing Highest

Month (AED) (AED) Lowest (AED)

January 1.6 1.6 1.6
February 1.6 1.6 1.6
March 1.6 1.6 1.6
April 1.6 1.6 1.6
May 1.6 1.6 1.6
June 1.6 1.6 1.6
July 1.6 1.6 1.6
August 16 1.6 1.6
September 1.6 1.6 1.6
QOctober 16 1.6 1.6
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Movember 16 1.6

1.6

December 1.6 1.6

1.6

Statement of the comparative performance of the company share with the general market index and
the sector index to which the company belongs during 2023.

Share Value

1.8
1.6
1.4
1.2

0.8

0.4
0.2

Statement of the distribution of shareholder ownership as of 31/12/2023 (individuals, companies,
governments) classified as follows: local, Gulf, Arab, and foreign.

Shareholder Percentage of owned shares

classification

Individuals companies Government

Local

Arab

Foreign

Total
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Statement of Shareholders holding 5% of the Company's capital as of 31/12/2023

Number of owned Percentage of shares owned in

No. Name

shares the company’s capital

1 Ghobash Trading & Investment Lid. 55,804,624 34.88%
Co

5 Fidelity Assurance & Renaissance 64,000,000 40%
SAL

3 Rashid Al Mazrouei Real Estate One 24,000,000 15%
Person Company LLC

4 Nawwaf Ghubash Ahmed Ghubash 15,000,000 9.38%
Al Marri

Statement of the distribution of the shareholders according to the size of their ownership as of
31/12/2023

Number of Number of
shareholders owned shares

Percentage of shares
owned from the
capital

0.00003%

Ownership of the shares (share)

Less than 50,000 49
From 50,000 to less than 500,000 1 200,000 0.125%

From 500000 to Iess than 1 995,328 0.622%
5.000,000
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4 More than 5,000,000 4 158,804,624 99.253%

Statement of actions taken regarding investor relations controls

Name and contact information of the Investor Relations Officer
Obbad Fazal- Chief Financial Officer
Telephone: 04-2128020

Email: obbad.fazal@fidelityunited.ae
The electronic link to the investor relations page on the company's website.

https:/ffidelityunited.aef/investorrelations/

Statement of the special decisions that were presented in the General Assembly held during 2023
and the actions taken in relation thereto.

No special decisions that were presented in the General Assembly held during 2023.

Name of Corporate Secretary in charge of the Board of Directors Meetings & Date of Appointment

Rapporteur of the Board of Directors: Samer Sabbagh.
Date of his appointment: 14/09/2022

Detailed statement of the fundamental events and important disclosures that the company
encountered during 2023.

The company has completed the transfer of its main headquarters to the Emirate of Abu Dhabi

Statement of the deals that the company made with related parties during 2023, which are equal to
5% or more of the company’s capital.

During the year 2023, the company did not conclude any deal with any of the related parties equal to 5% or
more of the company's capital.
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Statement of the percentage of Emiratization at the company for the year 2021, 2022 and 2023

2021: 8.33%
2022: 10.97%
2023 :13.44 %

Statement of innovative projects and initiatives undertaken by the Company or under development in
2023

1- Consumer Lines:
¢ Motor: Portal for Imported Vehicles motor insurance
e PET: Pet Insurance Renewal Portal

2- Operations, Customer Service & Legal:
« Full workflow automation — policy level
 RPA for processes in operation

¢ AML screening system

3-1IT:

Launched Pet Insurance Portal B2B

Revamped Corporate Website

Medical Individual Portal Integration with Nextcare

Medical SME Portal Phase 1 — Quotation tool for brokers

Bl Tool {(Power Bl) — Motor

Sanctions Screening Integration (AML)

Medical Individual Portal Renewals

Motor Non GCC Product Implementation in portal

Commercial SME NB and Renewal Revamp with Payment Gateway
RPA : implementation of 8 RPA’S for better efficiencies and improved TAT
Cflow Phase Il :

- Medical Claims

- TAT and Reports implementation

- Commercial Renewal

¢ Oracle Cloud Disaster Recovery Solution
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4- HCA:
* Research on new HRMS
 Individual Development Plan for employees’ learning and development

5- Employee Benefits:

 SME quotation portal

6- Claims;

¢ Fresh Desk for mail management for motor claims

e Cflow for Medical reimbursement claims.
¢ |RIS Integration with Motori Platform for Motor Risk assessment.

Signature of the
Chairman of the Board
of Directors

Signature of the
Chairman of the Audit
Committee

Signature of the
Chairman of
Nominations and
Remuneration
Committee -

Signature of the
Director of the
Internal Control

Department

Date

25/3/2024

.........................

26/03/2024
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The Board of Directors’ Report — Year Ended December 31, 2023

The Board of Directors is pleased to report Fidelity United's financial results for the year ended 31st December 2023,
Continuing with the exceptional growth trend for the year Fidelity United achieved total Gross written premiums (GWP)
of AED 654m as compared to AED 422m in the year before depicting an increase of 55%. The increase is mainly driven
by the Medical business followed by Consumer and commercial segments. The total insurance revenue as per IFRS17
amounted to AED 566m for December 2023 as compared to AED 395m in 2022 as captured below.

Institance Revenue - : Blecember 3ast , : “Ing ol(Rleerease)
(AER in Ehotisands) 24 :/.“, 3 : 20 (’J/‘: Tran An ; :'r’(;
Commercial 139,536 114,442 25,094 22%
Consumer 115,970 95,032 20,938 22%
Medical and Life 310,656 185,649 125,007 67%
Total 566,162 395,123 171,039 43%

The year 2023 was a very tough year for Fidelity United as market conditions continued to be challenging resulting in
higher-than-expected losses. It is worthwhile to share that due to the implementation of new accounting standard (IFRS
9 Financial Instruments) effective January 1, 2023, Fidelity United was no longer allowed to present the gains on
disposal of FVTOCI investments in the income statement, creating a significant impact on the net loss for the period. As
aresult of the above factors Fidelity United has incurred a net loss of AED 17.4m compared to a profit of AED 3.6m last
year. It is also worth pointing out that after considering the impact of FVTOCI Investments included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Fidelity United is showing only a net other comprehensive loss of AED 1.9m as against a loss
of AED 16.8m for the prior year.

Future Outlook

As Fidelity United continues to show strong topline growth, the focus moving forward will be to closely monitor the net
bottom-line to ensure profitability. We firmly believe that Fidelity United is well placed to benefit from market opportunities
and ready to play a more significant role in the UAE Insurance market. Keeping in mind UAE’s strong economic
performance in 2023 and projected growth of more than 5% for the year 2024, we are confident that our performance
will continue to get better.

Fidelity United will continue to focus on customer services, marketing and branding activities, enhancing connectivity
with business partners and at the same time we are innovatively working on enhancing the existing products and
evaluating the requirements for new products. Recently During the year Fidelity United launched our new website which
is highly customer focused and will enhance our customer connectivity.

The Board of Directors would like to thank all our customers and business partners for their continued trust in United
Fidelity Insurance Company, strengthening our image as the reliable insurance partner. The Board of Directors would
also like to thank our employees for their unwavering dedication and hard work.
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Chairmaf of the Board
(9t March 2024

UNITED FIDELITY INSURANCE COMPANY
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Office 302, 303, 308
One Central, DWTC
Dubai, UAE

P.O. Box 1620
T +971 4 388 9925
F +971 4 388 9915

Independent Auditot’s Report www.grantthornton.ae
To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.). (the “Company™),
which comptise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in shateholdets’ equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including matetial accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the yeat then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standatds on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the 4uditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accotdance with International Ethics Standards
Board for Acconntants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the requitements of the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 27 to the financial statements which states that as of 31 December 2023, the
Company had a SCR Solvency Margin Deficit of AED 5.1 million as compared to the SCR capital
requirements of AED 108.6 million and that the Company’s ability to comply with the solvency tequirement
depends on the effective implementation of the business plan submitted to the Central Bank of UAE. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgetment, wete of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the curtent yeat. These mattets, and any comments we make on the
results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepatate opinion on these mattets.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

2

© 2024 Grant Thornton UAE - All rights reserved. Grant Thornton UAE represents all legal licenses under which Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting grantthornton.ae
Limited Corporation, A British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) registered Branch, operate in the UAE. These licenses include the Abu D habi, Dubai and Sharjah

based branches — Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting Limited — registered with the Abu Dhabi Global Market — Grant Thornton Audit and Accounting

Limited Corporation BVI —registered with the Dubai Financial Services Authority.

“Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients
and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member
firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audic Matter S :

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reinsurance
contract assets, insurance contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract liabilities are valued at AED 213
million, AED 465 million and AED 5 million
respectively. (Refer to note 9 to the financial
statements).

Valuation of (Re)Insurance contract assets and liabilities
involves significant judgements and estimates
particularly with respect to the estimation of the ptesent
value of future cash flows, eligibility of the premium
allocation approach (PAA) and estmation of the
liabilities for incurred claims.

These cash flows primarily include detetmination of
expected premium receipts, expected ultimate cost of
claims and allocation of insurance acquisiion cash
flows which are within the contract boundaties.

The calculation for these liabilities includes significant
estimation and involvement of actuarial expetts in order
to ensute appropriateness of methodology,
assumptions and data used to determine the estimated
future cash flows and the apptopriateness of the
discount rates used to determine the present value of
these cashflows,

Maluation of (Re)lmsurance Contract Assets and Fiabilities

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

We

petformed  the
conjunction with our actuatial specialists:

following procedures in

- Understood and evaluated the process, the design
and implementation of controls in place to
determine valuation of (Re)lnsutance contract
assets and liabilities;

- Assessed of the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management appointed actuaty;

- Tested the completeness, and on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of data used to determine
future cashflows;

- Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology, significant assumptions including
risk adjustment, PAA eligibility assessment,
discount rates and expenses included within the
fulfilment cashflows. This included consideration
of the reasonableness of assumptions against actual
historical experience and the approptiateness of
any judgments applied;

- We independently reperformed the calculation to
assess the mathematical accuracy of the
reinsurance contract assets and liabilities on
selected classes of business, particulatly focusing
on largest and most uncertain resetves;

- Evaluated and tested the data used in the
impairment model calculations receivables for
amount due; and

- Evaluated and tested the calculation of the
expected credit allowance and key assumptions and
judgements used.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
Disclosure of the transition impact o adopting ERS 17
We determined the disclosure of the impact of adopting
IFRS 17 to be a key audit matter because of the
significant changes introduced by the standard, which
includes significant estimates and judgements. These
impacts will be of particular importance to the readets
of these financial statements. (Refer to note 4 to the
financial statements).

In particular, we have focused on the following key
judgements  that management have taken on
implementing IFRS 17:

- The determination of the transition approach
adopted for each group of insurance contracts;

- The methodology adopted and key assumptions
used to determine the impact and restatement of
previously reported numbers in accordance with
IFRS 17.

- - Disclosure of the impact of restatement, in
accordance with IFRS 17.

\Naluation of Investment propertics

Company holds investment properties under the fair
value model as at 31 December 2023 amounting to
AED 46,639,999 (2022: 46,783,999), (Refet to note 6 to
the financial statements).

The fair value estimate requires significant judgement
and estimates by management and independent external
valuers. The Company has involved independent
external valuers in order to value the investment
properties for the purpose of determining the fait value
for inclusion in the financial statements. The existence
of significant estimation and judgement coupled with
change in valuation assumptions used could tesult in
material change. Thetefore, the valuation of these
investment properties was significant to our audit.

How our audit addressed the key audit marter

Our audit procdures, among others, included:

Our audit procedures, among others, included:

Assessed whether the judgements applied by
management in determining their accounting
policies are in accordance with IFRS 17;

Using our actuarial specialist team members,
evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
used to determine discount rates as at the transition
date;

Evaluated the approptiateness of significant
assumptions including risk adjustment, PAA
eligibility assessment, discount rates and expenses
included within the fulfilment cashflows;

Evaluated of the completeness, and on sample
basis, the accuracy and relevance of the data used
to determine the impact of IFRS 17 adoption and
restatement; and

Evaluated the reasonableness of the quantitative
and qualitative disclosures included in the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS 17.

Obtained an understanding of the process of
determining the fair value of the investment
propetties;

Assessed the competence, skills, qualifications and
objectivity of the independent extetnal valuers;

Reviewed the scope of the engagement between
the external valuer and the Company to determine
if this was sufficient for audit putposes;

Vetified the accuracy, completeness and relevance
of the input data used for detiving fair values;

Reperformed the mathematical accuracy of the
valuations on a sample basis;

Agreed the results of the valuatons to the
amounts recorded in the financial statements; and

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures included in
financial statements against the requitements of

IFRS:s.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comptises information
included in the Company’s 2023 Ditectots” Repott.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the othet information and accotdingly we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the othet information is matetially inconsistent with the
financial statements ot our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appeats to be matetially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matetial misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to tepott in this regatd.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs and their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE
Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 and Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 (pteviously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as
amended), and for such internal control as management determines is necessaty to enable the preparation
of financial statements that ate free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whethet due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditot’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISA will always detect a matetial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered matetial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Tdentify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or etror, design and petform audit procedutes responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, ot the overtide of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncettainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concetn. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we ate required to draw attention in our auditor’s teport
to the related disclosures in the financial statements ot, if such disclosutes atre inadequate, to modify
out opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of out auditor’s
report. Howevet, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concetn.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements reptesent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govetnance regatding, among othet mattets, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify duting our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requitements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relatonships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on out independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the cuttent year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the mattet ot when, in extremely ratre citcumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, we report that:

i) the Company has maintained proper books of account;

i)  we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessaty fot the purposes of
our audit;

iii)  the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all matetial respects, with the applicable
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021;

iv)  the financial information included in the Directors’ Report, in so far as it relates to these financial
statements, is consistent with the books of account of the Company;

v)  note7 to the financial statements discloses purchase of shares by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2023;

vi)  note 23 to the financial statements discloses material related patty transactions, and the terms under
which they wete conducted;

vi))  note 21 to the financial statements reflects the social contributions made duting the yeat; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements (continued)

vii) based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended
31 December 2023 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Fedetal Law No. 32 of 2021 or its
Atticles of Association which would have a matetial impact on its activities or its financial position.

Furthet, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 (previously Fedetal Law No. 6 of 2007, as
amended), we repott that we have obtained all the information and explanation we consideted necessary
for the purpose of our, audit.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2023

ASSETS

Property and equipment

Investment properties

Investments at fair value through
profit or loss (FVIPL)

Investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI

Insurance contract assets

Reinsurance contract assets

Prepayments and other assets

Statutory deposits

Other receivables

Bank balances and cash

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

General reserve

Reinsurance reserve

Cumulative change in fair value of
FVTOCI investments
Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Employees' end of service benefits
Insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract liabilities
Lease liabilities

Other payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

Notes

w

13
14
15
16

18

19
20

Restated Restated

2023 2022 2021

AED AED AED
11,766,413 22,960,860 10,642,875
46,639,999 46,783,999 46,799,999
155,987,108 103,295,993 64,710,250
113,580,481 122,132,728 99,900,850
- 78,986 =
212,801,173 150,466,850 53,309,337
4,539,292 3,369,402 2,601,474
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
2,126,240 2,841,297 2,037,619
76,228,358 58,736,058 70,998,762
633,669,064 520,666,173 361,001,166
160,000,000 160,000,000 100,000,000
1,375,495 1,375,495 1,307,173
447,524 447,524 1,119,524
4,802,026 2,989,376 1,740,629
3,988,910 (6,621,482) 13,867,416
(36,303,139) (21,982,864) (24,314,500)
134,310,816 136,208,049 93,720,242
4,484,362 4,149,775 3,376,247
465,498,527 340,608,736 227,810,004
5,442,405 7,500,602 13,972,165
7,187,505 17,567,692 6,615,432
16,745,449 14,631,319 15,507,076
499,358,248 384,458,124 267,280,924
633,669,064 520,666,173 361,001,166

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 18 March 2024 by the Board of Directors and

signed on its behalf by:

-

Sl

Chairman—

The attached explanatory notes from 1 to 28 form patt of these financial statements.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Restated
Notes 2023 2022
AED AED
Insurance tevenue 9 566,162,066 395,123,034
Insurance service expenses 21 (560,594,300)  (451,618,850)
Insurance service result before reinsutance contracts
held 5,567,766 (56,495,816)
Allocation of reinsurance premiums (311,311,919)  (202,061,881)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurance for incurted claims 273,111,786 235,789,527
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held (38,200,133) 33,727,646
Insurance service results (32,632,367) (22,768,170)
Insurance finance (expense) / income for insurance
contracts issued 22 (6,773,662) 5,291,370
Reinsurance finance income / (expense) for reinsurance
conttacts held 22 4,701,969 (3,717,546)
Net insurance finance (expense)/ income (2,071,693) 1,573,824
Net investment income 22 17,710,114 23.916,350
Net insurance and investment results 15,638,421 25,490,174
Other operating (expense)/ income (437,986) 926,701
(Loss) / profit for the year (17,431,932) 3,648,705
Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share 17 (0.109) 0.030

The attached explanatoty notes from 1 to 28 form part of these financial statements.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Loss) / profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Net change in fair value of equity investments designated at FVTOCI
Gain on sale of equity instruments designated at FVTOCI

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Net realised gain on disposal of FVTOCI investmerits
transferred to statement of profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Restated

2023 2022

AED AED

(17,431,932) 3,648,705

11,569,035 1,911,188
3,965,665 -

- (22,400,086)

15,534,700 (20,488,898)

(1,897,232) (16,840,193)

The attached explanatory notes from 1 to 28 form part of these financial statements.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Restated
Notes 2023 2022
AED AED
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) / profit for the yeat (17,431,932) 3,648,705
Adjustments for:
Depteciation of property and equipment 5 5,326,599 4,298,369
Change in fair value for investments at FVIPL 7 528,029 8,085,716
Investment income (18,335,359) (32,272,017)
Expected credit loss 2,348,004 402,716
Interest expense on lease liability 727,156 600,588
Provision fotr employees” end of service indemnity 18 978,192 1,009,197
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital (25,859,311) (14,226,726)
Changes in working capital:
Other receivables, and prepayments (454,833) (3,609,225)
Reinsurance contract assets (insurance contract assets) (64,603,341) (111,611,395)
Reinsurance contract liabilities (insurance contract liabilities) 122,831,592 120,299,334
Other payables 1,368,002 1,161,863
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 33,282,109 (7,986,149)
Employees end of service indemnity paid 18 (643,605) (235,669
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 32,638,504 (8,221,818)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (642,768) (2,153,998)
Net movement in fixed deposits 10,000,000 9,000,000
Proceeds from disposal of investments at FVTOCI 90,125,468 116,306,592
Purchase of investments at FVTOCI (66,038,520) (138,353,414)
Intetest received 6,458,099 1,990,966
Proceeds from disposal of investments at FVTPL 29,276,218 21,972,162
Purchase of investments at FVTPL (82,003,515) (67,882,451)
Dividend received from investments at FVTOCI 22 9,790,357 7,424,974
Income received from investment properties 1,739,060 1,436,967
Net cash used in investing activities (1,295,601) (50,258,202)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital - 60,000,000
Payment of transaction chatges towatds rights issue - (672,000)
Interest paid on lease liability (727,157) (600,588)
Payment of lease liability (3,123,446) (3,510,096)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (3,850,603) 55,217,316
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 27,492,300 (3,262,704)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 35,736,058 38,998,762
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 12 63,228,358 35,736,058
Non-cash transactions not included in the cash flows:
Addition to right to use of assets and lease liability 5 1,396,211 14,462,356
Adjustment on termination to right to use assets 5 (7,906,827) -
Adjustment on termination to lease liability (8,652,952) -

The attached explanatory notes from 1 to 28 form part of these financial statements.
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1 Legal status and activities

United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.) (the “Company) is a public shareholding company, and was
tegistered in the Emirate of Ras Al Khaimah by Emiri dectee No. 13/76 issued by the ruler of Ras Al
Khaimah on 15 September 1976, which was amended by the Emiri decree No. 10/77 issued on 15
December 1977. The Company is subject to the regulations of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 and
the UAE Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 relating to commercial companies in the UAE and is registered in
the Insurance Companies Register of Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates under registration number
8.

The Company is domiciled in the United Arab Emirates, duting the year the Company changed its
registered office address to Abu Dhabi located at Office 407, Bloom Central Building, Airport Road, Al
Manhal, Al Tibbiya, PO Box no: 721, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates. The Company’s ordinaty shares
are listed on Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange, United Arab Emirates. The principal activity of the Company
is the writing of all classes of general and life insurance. The Company operates through its Head Office in
Dubai and branch offices in Abu Dhabi, Ras Al Khaimah, Shatjah and Fujairah.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the applicable laws
and regulations, including UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021.

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released Federal Decree-Law No. 47 of 2022 on the
Taxation of Corporations and Businesses (Corporate Tax Law ot the Law) to enact a Federal corporate tax
regime in the UAE. The Law was published in the official gazette on 10 October 2022 and became effective
on 25 October 2022. The Corporate Tax law will apply to taxable persons for financial years beginning on
or after 1 June 2023, For the Company, Corporate Tax will apply from 1 January 2024. A rate of 9% will
apply to taxable income exceeding AED 375,000. A rate of 0% will apply to taxable income not exceeding
this threshold. The Company engaged a consultant to assist with assessing the impact of Corporate Tax.
This engagement is substantially completed and will enable the Company to start accounting for Corporate
Tax from Q1 2024.

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”)

New and revised IFRSs and interpretations applied on the financial statements

The following relevant standards, intetpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the
JASB:

Standard number Title Effective date

Disclosute of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and

1as1 IFRS Practice Statement 2 1 January 2023

IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Hstimates — Amendments to IAS 8 1 January 2023
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities atising from a
single transaction — Amendments to IAS 12

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

IAS 12 1 January 2023

These standatds have been adopted by the Company and did not have a material impact on these financial
statements, except for the adoption of “IFRS 17 Insurance contracts”.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standatds, interpretations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up
to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends
to adopt these standatds, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard number Title Effective date
IAS1 Amendment to IAS 1 — Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
IAS 16 Amendment to IFRS 16 - Leases on sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
IAS 21 lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025

13



United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 Statement of compliance with IFRS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) promulgated by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and interpretations
thereof issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS IC”) and in compliance with the applicable
requirements of the United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 (“Companies Law”),
relating to commercial companies and United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Law No. 48 of 2023
(previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, as amended) concerning Financial Regulations for Insurance
Companies issued by the Central Bank of the UAE (“CBUAE”) and regulation of its operations. The
company is not in compliance with the solvency requirements for CBUAE as disclosed in note 27.

Accounting convention

These financial statements ate prepated under the historical cost convention except for the measurement
at fair value of financial assets and investment properties which are catried at fair value. The financial
statements have been presented in UAE Dirhams (AED) except when otherwise indicated.

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a cuzrent / non-current classification.
However, the following balances would genetally be classified as cutrent: bank balances and cash,
prepayments and other assets, other receivables and other payables. The following balances would generally
be classified as non-current: property and equipment, investment properties, statutory deposit and
provision for employees’ end of service indemnity. ‘The following balances are of mixed nature (including
both current and non-curtent portions): investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, insurance contract assets reinsurance contract assets,
insurance contract liabilities, reinsurance contract liabilities and lease liabilities.

4 Material accounting policies
Standatrds, interpretations, and amendments to existing standards —~ Impact of new IFRS
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts, reinsurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features.
It introduces a model that measures groups of contracts based on the Company’s estimates of the present
value of future cash flows that are expected to arise as the Company fulfils the contracts, an explicit risk
adjustment for non-financial risk and a contractual service margin.

Under IFRS 17, insurance revenue in each teporting period represents the changes in the liabilities for
temaining coverage that telate to services for which the Company expects to teceive consideration and an
allocation of premiums that relate to recoveting insurance acquisition cash flows. In addition, investment
components ate no longer included in insurance revenue and insurance service expenses.

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts for annual yeats on or after 1 January 2023. The Company
has restated comparative information applying the transitional provisions to IFRS 17. The nature of the
changes in accounting policies can be summatised, as follows:

Changes to classification and measurement

The adoption of JFRS 17 did not change the classification of the Company’s insurance contracts. The
Company was previously permitted under IFRS 4 to continue accounting using its previous accounting
policies. However, IFRS 17 establishes specific principles for the recognition and measurement of insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held by the Company. Under IFRS 17, the Company’s insurance
contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held are all eligible to be measured by applying the PAA. The
PAA simplifies the measurement of insurance contracts in comparison with the general model in IFRS 17.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Changes to classification and measurement (continued)

The Company applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of all of its insurance and reinsurance
contracts. When measuring liabilities for remaining coverage, the PAA is similar to the Company’s previous
accounting treatment. However, when measuring liabilities for outstanding claims, the Company now
discounts the future cash flows (unless they are expected to occur in one year or less from the date on
which the claims are incurred) and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Previously, all acquisition costs wete recognised and presented as separate assets from the related
insurance contracts (‘deferred acquisition costs’) until those costs were included in the statement of profit
or loss or statement of comprehensive income. Under IFRS 17, only insurance acquisition cash flows that
arise before the recognition of the related insurance contracts are recognised as separate assets and are
tested for recoverability. These assets are presented in the carrying amount of the related portfolio of
contracts and are detecognised once the related contracts have been recognised.

Income and expenses from reinsurance contracts other than insurance finance income and expenses are
now presented as a single net amount in the statement of profit or loss. Previously, amounts recovered
from reinsurers and reinsurance expenses were presented separately.

The measurement principles of the PAA differ from the ‘earned premium approach’ used by the Company
under IFRS 4 in the following key areas:

*  The liability for remaining covetage reflects premiums received less deferred acquisition expenses less
amounts recognised in revenue for insurance services provided;

*  Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage includes an adjustment for the time value of
money and the effect of financial risk where the premium due date and the related period of coverage
are more than 12 months apart;

*  Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage involves an explicit evaluation of risk adjustment
for non-financial risk when a group of contracts is onerous in otder to calculate a loss component
(previously these may have formed part of the unexpired risk reserve provision); and

*  Measurement of the liability for incurted claims (previously claims outstanding and incurred-but-not-
teported (IBNR) is determined on a discounted probability-weighted expected value basis and includes
an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

The Company capitalises its insutrance acquisition cash flows. No separate asset is recognised for deferred
acquisidon costs. Instead, qualifying insurance acquisition cash flows are subsumed into the insurance
liability for remaining coverage.

Changes to presentation and disclosure

For presentation in the statement of financial position, the Company aggregates insurance and reinsurance
contracts issued, and reinsutance contracts held, respectively and presents separately:

*  Groups of insutance and reinsurance contracts issued that are assets;

*  Groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued that are liabilities;
*  Groups of reinsurance contracts held that are assets; and

*  Groups of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities.

The groups referred to above are those established at initial recognition in accordance with the IFRS 17
requirements.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Changes to presentation and disclosure (continued)

The line item descriptions in the statement of profit or loss and statement of othet comprehensive income
have been changed significantly compared with last year. Previously, the Company reported the following
line items:

*  Gross wtitten premjums

*  Net written premiums

* Changes in premium reserves
*  Gross insurance claims

* Net insurance claims

Instead, IFRS 17 requires separate presentation of:

¢ Insurance revenue

* Insurance service expenses

* Insurance finance income or expenses

* Income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held

The Company provides disaggregated qualitative and quantitative information about:

* Amounts recognised in its financial statements from insurance contracts
»  Significant judgements, and changes in those judgements, when applying the standard

Transition

The Company has applied IFRS 17 from financial reporting periods commencing on 1 January 2023 with
the date of transition from IFRS 4 being 1 January 2022. The Company has adopted IFRS 17
retrospectively. The full retrospective approach was applied to the insurance contracts in force at the
transition date. The table below summatises the impact of initial application of IFRS 17 as at 1 January 2022:

As Effect of
previously  application
reported of IFRS 17 Restated
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
ASSETS
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 88,662,920  (88,662,920) -
Insurance contract asset 145,545,360  (145,545,360) -
Reinsurance contract asset - 53,309,337 53,309,337
Prepayments and other assets 2,601,474 - 2,601,474
Other receivables - 2,037,619 2,037,619
Deferred acquisition costs 28,852,761  (28,852,761) -
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 298,483,026  (70,673,022) 227,810,004
Reinsurance contract liabilities - 13,972,165 13,972,165
Insurance and reinsurance payables 141,401,827 (141,401,827) -
Other liabilities and provision 9,211,665 6,295,411 15,507,076
Deferred commission income 9,033,649 (9,033,649) -
EQUITY
Retained earnings and reserve (17,441,337)  (6,873,163)  (24,314,500)
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification

The Company issues insurance contracts in the normal course of business, under which it accepts significant
insurance tisk from its policyholders. As 2 general guideline, the Company determines whether it has
significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment
Separating components from insurance and reinsurance contracts

The Company assesses its insurance and reinsurance products to determine whether they contain distinct
components which must be accounted for under another IFRS instead of under IFRS 17. After separating
any distinct components, the Company applies IFRS 17 to all remaining components of the (host) insurance
contract. Cutrently, the Company’s products do not include any distinct components that require
separation.Some reinsurance contracts issued contain profit commission arrangements. Under these
arrangements, there is a minimum guaranteed amount that the policyholder will always receive — either in
the form of profit commission, or as claims, ot another contractual payment irrespective of the insured
event happening. The minimum guaranteed amounts have been assessed to be highly interrelated with the
insurance component of the reinsurance contracts and are, therefore, non-distinct investment components
which are not accounted for separately.

Level of Aggregation

IFRS 17 requires a company to determine the level of aggregation for applying its requirements. The
Company previously applied aggregation levels under IFRS 4, which were significantly higher than the level
of aggregation required by IFRS 17. The level of aggregation for the Company is determined firstly by
dividing the business written into portfolios. Portfolios comprise groups of contracts with similar risks
which are managed together. Portfolios are further divided based on expected profitability at inception into
three categories: onerous contracts, contracts with no significant risk of becoming onerous, and the
remainder. This means that, for determining the level of aggregation, the Company identifies a contract as
the smallest “unit’, i.e., the lowest common denominator. However, the Company makes an evaluation of
whether a seties of contracts need to be treated together as one unit based on reasonable and supportable
information, or whether a single contract contains components that need to be separated and treated as if
they were stand-alone contracts. As such, what is treated as a contract for accounting purposes may differ
from what is considered as a contract for other purposes (i.e., legal or management). IFRS 17 also notes
that no group for level of aggregation purposes may contain contracts issued more than one year apart. The
Company has elected to group togethet those contracts that would fall into different groups only because
law, regulation ot internal policies specifically constrains its practical ability to set a different ptice or level
of benefits for policyholders with different characteristics. The Company applied a full retrospective
approach fot transition to IFRS 17. The pottfolios ate further divided into groups of contracts by quattet
of issue and profitability for recognition and measurement purposes. Hence, within each quarter of issue,
portfolios of contracts are divided into three groups, as follows:

* A group of contracts that ate onerous at initial recognition (if any)

* A group of contracts that, at initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently (if any)

* A group of the temaining contracts in the portfolio (if any)

The profitability of groups of contracts is assessed by profitability committee that take into consideration
existing and new business. The Company assumes that no contracts in the portfolio ate onerous at initial
recognition unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise. For contracts that are not onerous, the
Company assesses, at initial recognition, that there is no significant possibility of becoming onetous
subsequently by assessing the likelihood of changes in applicable facts and circumstances.
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Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Level of Aggregation (continued)
Below are some of the relevant facts and circumstances that the Company considets:

*  Evaluation of expected combined ratios;

*  Pricing information;

*  Results of similar contracts it has recognised; and

*  Environment factors, e.g., a change in market expetience or regulations.

The Company divides portfolios of reinsurance contracts held applying the same principles set out above,
except that the references to onerous contracts refer to contracts on which there is a net gain on initial
recognition. For some groups of reinsurance conttacts held, a group can comptise a single contract.

Recognition
The Company recognises groups of insutance contracts it issues from the earliest of the following:

*  The beginning of the coverage period of the gtoup of contracts;

*  The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due or when the first payment is
teceived if there is no due date;

*  For a group of onerous contracts, if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onerous the
Company recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held:

*  If the reinsurance contracts provide proportionate coverage at the later of the beginning of the
covetage petiod of the group, or the initial recognition of any underlying contract; and

*  In all other cases, from the beginning of the coverage period of the group the Company adds new
contracts to the group when they are issued or initiated.

Contract boundary

The Company includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash flows
within the boundarty of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundaty of an insurance
contract if they atise from substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting period in which
the Company can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums, or in which the Company has a substantive
obligation to provide the policyholder with services. A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

*  The Company has the practical ability to teassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a
result, can set a price ot level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or

Both of the following criteria ate satisfied:

*  The Company has the practical ability to reassess the tisks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that
contain the contract and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the tisk of
that portfolio; and

*  The pricing of the premiums for coverage up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not take
into account the risks that relate to petiods after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract
is not recognised. Such amounts relate to future insurance contracts.
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Standards, interpretations, and amendments to existing standards — Impact of new IFRS
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IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Level of Aggregation (continued)
Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach
Insurance contracts ~ initial measurement

The Company applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues
and reinsurance contracts that it holds, as:

*  The coverage petiod of each contract in the group is one year ot less, including coverage arising from
all premiums within the contract boundary.

Or

*  For contracts longer than one year, the Company has modelled possible future scenarios and
reasonably expects that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group
containing those contracts under the PAA does not differ materially from the measurement that would
be produced applying the general model. In assessing materiality, the Company has also considered
qualitative factors such as the nature of the risk and types of its lines of business.

The Company does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant
variability in the fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining
coverage during the year before a claim is incurted. Vatiability in the fulfilment cash flows increases with:

*  The extent of future cash flows related to any detivatives embedded in the contracts.
*  The length of the coverage year of the group of contracts.

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Company measures the liability for
temaining coverage as the premiums, if any, received at initial recognition, minus any insurance acquisition
cash flows at that date, with the exception of contracts which are one year or less where this is expensed,
plus or minus any amount atising from the derecognition at that date of the asset or liability recognised for
insurance acquisition cash flows that the Company pays or receives before the group of insurance contracts
is recognised. There is no allowance for time value of money as the premiums are mostly received within
one year of the coverage year.

The Company measures its reinsurance assets for a group of reinsurance contracts that it holds on the same
basis as insurance contracts that it issues, however, adapted to reflect the featutes of reinsurance contracts
held that differ from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation of expenses or reduction in
expenses rather than revenue.
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Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standatds — Impact of new IFRS
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IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance contracts — subsequent measutrement

The Company measures the cartying amount of the Hability for remaining coverage at the end of each
reporting year as the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the year:

*  Plus premiums received in the year;

*  Minus capitalised insurance acquisition cash flows;

*  Plus any amounts relating to the amortisation of the acquisition cash flows recognised as an expense
in the reporting year for the group;

*  Plus any adjustment to the financing component, where applicable;

*  Minus the amount recognised as insurance revenue for the coverage year; and

* Minus any investment component paid or transfetred to the liability for incurtred claims.

The Company estimates the liability for incurted claitns as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred
claims. The fulfilment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all teasonable and supportable
information available without undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and uncertainty of those future
cash flows, they reflect current estimates from the perspective of the entity and include an explicit
adjustment for non-financial risk (the tisk adjustment). The Company adjust the future cash flows fot the
time value of money and the effect of financial tisk for the measurement of liability for incurred claims.

Insurance acquisition cash flows ate allocated on a straight-line basis to statement of profit or loss.
Reinsurance contracts

The subsequent measurement of reinsurance contracts held follows the same principles as those for
insurance contracts issued and has been adapted to reflect the specific features of reinsurance held.

Insurance contracts — modification and derecognition
The Company derecognises insurance contracts when:

* The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or
expired);
Or

*  The contract is modified such that the modification results in a change in the measurement model or
the applicable standard for measuring a component of the contract, substantially changes the contract
boundaty, ot requires the modified contract to be included in a different group. In such cases, the
Company derecognises the initial contract and recognises the modified contract as a new contract.

When a modification is not treated as a derecognition, the Company recognises amounts paid or received
for the modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant liability for remaining coverage.

Presentation

The Company has presented sepatately, in the statement of financial position, the carrying amount of
groups of insurance contracts issued that are assets, groups of insurance contracts issued that are labilities,
teinsurance contracts held that ate assets and groups of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilites.

Any assets or liabilities for insurance acquisition cash flows recognised before the corresponding insurance
contracts are included in the carrying amount of the related groups of insurance contracts issued.

‘The Company disaggtegates the total amount recognised in the statement of statement of profit ot loss and
othet comprehensive income into an insurance setvice result, comprising insurance revenue and insurance
service expense, and insurance finance income or expenses.
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IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Presentation (continued)

The Company disaggregates the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial and
non-financial portion which will be presented in insurance finance income or expenses and in insurance
service result respectively. The Company separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance
contracts held from the expenses ot income from insurance contracts issued.

Insurance revenue

For groups of insurance contracts measured under the PAA, the Company recognises insurance revenue
based on the passage of time over the coverage petiod of a group of contracts where revenue is recognised
based on expected timing of incurred insurance service expenses.

Loss components

The Company assumes that 1o contracts are onerous at initial recognition unless facts and circumstances
indicate otherwise. The Company reassess this on quattetly basis and if at quarter end, the facts and
circamstances indicate that a group of insurance contracts is onerous, the Company establishes a loss
component as the excess of the fulfilment cash flows that relate to the remaining coverage of the group
over the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage of the group. Accordingly, by the end of
the coverage year of the group of contracts the loss component will be zero.

Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the group of
insurance contracts arising from:

*  The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
*  The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

The Company do not disaggregate insurance finance income of expenses between statement of profit or
loss and statement of other comptehensive income.

Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

The Company presents separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurers, and an allocation of the reinsurance
premiums paid. The Company treats reinsurance cash flows that are contingent on claims on the undetlying
contracts as patt of the claims that are expected to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract held, and
excludes investment components and commissions from an allocation of reinsurance premiums presented
on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Classification of insurance contracts

Contracts issued by the Company ate generally short term, with some of the liability policies being over a year.
The Company uses Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) for all insurance contracts supported by the PAA
Eligibility test. Certain long term policies telated to the liability business are also covered by the PAA approach
as the difference of LFRC between PAA and GMM approach at policy inception is not material.

The Company writes the following types of insurance contracts (i.€) marine hull insurance, marine cargo
insurance, aviation insurance, engineering and construction: insurance, liability insurance, financial lines insutance
propetty insurance, personal accident insurance, group life insurance, motor insurance , medical insurance and
other personal lines.

Products are teviewed by the business units on a quarterly basis to confirm, or otherwise, that pricing
assumptions temain approptiate, Analysis is performed on earnings and liability movements to understand
the source of any matetial variaton in actual results from what was expected. This confirms the
approptiateness of assumptions used in underwriting and pricing.
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and ate measured initially at fair value plus transactions costs. Regular
way putchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset i.e. the trade date.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial tisks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following
categoties:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets for which:
e the Company’s business model is to hold them in otder to collect contractual cash flows; and

¢ the contractual terms give tise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

These are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period which are classified as non-cutrent assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost comptise statutory deposits, cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from
telated parties and most other assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVIPL’)

Financial assets held for trading are not held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in otder to collect contractual cash flows.

The Company has designated certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss because designation
eliminates or significantly teduces an accounting mismatch, which would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVITOCI’)

Investments in equity securities are classified as FVTOCI. At initial recognition, the Company can make an
irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-insttument basis) to designate investments in equity investments
at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading,

Fair value measurement

For investments traded in organised financial matkets, fair value is determined by reference to stock
exchange quoted prices at the close of business on the statement of financial position date. Investments in
unquoted secutities ate measured at fair value, considering observable market inputs and unobservable
financial data of investees.
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the putchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms tequite delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established
by the matket concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL). Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as at FVITPL are recognised immediately in
statement of profit or loss.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost ot fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Specifically:

6 debt instruments that are held within 2 business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that ate solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), ate subsequently measured at amortised cost;

(1) debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have conttactual cash flows that
ate SPPI, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comptehensive income
FVTOCIy;

(iif) all other debt insttuments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis or held for sale)
and equity investments are subsequently measured at FVIPL. However, the Company may make
the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset on an asset-
by-asset basis:

a. the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, in other comprehensive income
(OCI); and

4. the Company may irtevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost or
FVTOCI ctiteria as measured at FVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).

Equity instruments at FVI'OCI

Investments in equity instruments/funds at FVTOCI ate initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they ate measuted at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value of
secutities. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss on disposal of
the investments in equity instruments/funds but reclassified to tetained earnings. The Company has
designated all investments in equity instrtuments that are not held for trading as FVTOCIL

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in statement of profit or loss when
the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established unless the dividends cleatly represent a recovery
of patt of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in statement of other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognised in statement of other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to staterent of profit
or loss.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVIOCI are subject to
impairment.
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

@ assets with conttactual cash flows that are not SPPJ; or/and

(i) assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows ot held to
collect and sell; or

(i) assets designated at FVIPL using the fair value option.

These assets ate measutred at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
staternent of profit of loss.

Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on bank balances including statutory
and fixed deposits; other assets that are not measured at FVIPL; and debt investments measuted
subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCL

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments. A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required
for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial insttument has incteased significantly since
initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs ate measured at an amount equal to the 12-
months ECL.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for other assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
Current accounts with banks, debt investments measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCI,
fixed deposits and statutory deposits are assessed to have low credit risk as they are held with reputable
local banks.

Loss allowance for financial investrnents measured at amortised costs are deducted from gross catrying
amount of assets.

When determining whether the credit risk of a finandial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considets reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue costs ot effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information. Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Company’s receivables operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of vatious extetnal sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Company’s cote operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

. An actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;
. Significant deterioration in external market indicatots of credit risk for a particular financial

insttument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fait value of a financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

. Existing ot forecast advetse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtot’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

. Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtot;
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Impairment (continued)

. An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, ot technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments ate past due,
unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Company assumes that the credit tisk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
teporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(1) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,
(2) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(3) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Petforming means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there are no past due amounts.

The Company regulatly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as approptiate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

For certain categoties of financial assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
teceivables could include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

Impairment losses related to bank balances including statutory and fixed deposits, debt investments
measuted at amortised cost or FVTOCI, and insurance and other receivables are presented in the statement
of profit or loss within “(Charge)/ release of provision for impairment”.

Measurement of ECL

The Company employs statistical models for ECL calculations for bank balances, statutory and fixed
deposits. ECLs ate a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. The parameters used in calculation wete
derived from the Company’s internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They were
adjusted to reflect forward-looking information.

The Company reassessed its impairment loss on its insurance and other teceivables portfolio using an
expected loss measurement basis using the simplified approach.

Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one ot more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estmated futute cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. At each reporting date, the Company
assesses whether financial assets carried are credit impaired.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of property and equipment.
The following estimated useful lives are applied:

¢ Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
» Computets and office equipment 2-5 years
¢ Motor vehicles 4 years

The catrying values of property and equipment ate reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the catrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their
recovetable amount, being the higher of their value less costs to sell and their value in use.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain ot loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for
separately is capitalised and the catrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other
subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of
property and equipment. All other expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as the
expense is incurred.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost includes the cost of
construction and other related expenditure which are capitalised as and when activities that are necessary
to get the assets ready for use are in progress. Net realisable value represents the estimated recoverable
value based on expected future usage. Management reviews the carrying values of the capital work in
progress on an annual basis.

Capital wotk in progtess are considered to be completed when all related activities, for the entire assets
have been completed. Upon completion, those are transferred to property and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
tecognition, investment propetties ate stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting
date. Gains ot losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the
statement of profit ot loss in the year in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. Fair values
ate evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuer, applying a valuation model
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement ot disposal of an investment property are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year of retitement or disposal.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Transfers are made to {or from) investment propetty only when thete is 2 change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied propetty, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the
fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment
up to the date of change in use. (refer Note 6 for valuation techniques and inputs).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months of less in the statement of financial position which are subject to an insignificant
tisk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integtal part of the Company’s cash management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal ot constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some ot all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of money is matetial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when approptiate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Leases

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comptises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the eatlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful life of the right-of-use asset is determined on the same basis as those of
lease contract petiod. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s inctemental bortowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rates as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in the future lease payments atising from
a change in an index or tate, if thete is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a tesidual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension, or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
cotresponding adjustment is made to the catrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in the
statement of profit or loss if the cartying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Employee benefits
Annual leave and leave passage.

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees' entitlement to annual leave and leave passage
as a result of setvices rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the year.

Provision for employees’ end of service indemmity

Provision is made for the full amount of end of service benefits due to non-UAE national employees in
accordance with the U.A.E Labour Law and is based on cutrent remuneration and their period of setvice
at the end of the reporting period.
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Defined contribution plan

UAE national employees of the Company ate members of the Government-managed retirement pension
and social security benefit scheme pursuant to UAE Labout Law No. 7 of 1999. The Company is required
to contribute 12.5% of the “contribution calculation salaty” of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The employees and the Government conttibute 5% and 2.5% of the
“contribution calculation salaty” tespectively, to the scheme. The only obligation of the Company with
respect to the retirement pension and social security scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised
in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income, and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in applying the
accounting policies and the key soutces of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that were applied
in the audited financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Measurement of the expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance

The measurement of ECL is a significant estimate that involves determination of methodology, models and
data inputs. The following components have a major impact on the credit loss allowance for debt
insttuments catried at amottised cost, FVI'OCI investtents, bank balances and fixed deposits: definition
of default, significant increase in credit tisk, probability of default (“PD”), exposure at default (“EAD”),
and loss given default (“LGD”) and the histotical loss experience per ageing bucket has the major impact
on the credit loss allowance for Insurance and other receivables. The Company regularly reviews and
validates the models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss
estimates and actual credit loss expetience.

Valuation of unquoted equity investments

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on recent arm’s length market transactions,
cutrent fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, the expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics; or other valuation models.

Fair value of investment properties

Determining the fair value tequires an estimation of future cash flows expected to arise from the investment
propetties, a suitable growth rate, expected occupancy and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. It is reasonably possible on the basis of the existing knowledge that outcomes within next
financial year that are different from estimates made could require material adjustment to the fait value of
the investment properties. '

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The Company applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of insurance contracts. When measuring
liabilities for temaining coverage, the PAA is broadly similar to the Company’s previous accounting
treatment under IFRS 4. However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Company now
discounts cash flows that ate expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are
incutred and includes an explicit tisk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Liability for remaining coverage

For insurance acquisition cash flows, the Company is eligible and chooses to recognise the payments as an
expense immediately (coverage petiod of a year ot less) for its property insurance product line. For personal
accident insurance, matine insurance and liability reinsurance products, acquisition costs ate capitalised.

28



United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Judgements and estimates (continued)
Liability for remaining coverage (continued)

The effect of recognising insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense on initial recognition of group of
insurance contracts is to increase the liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition and reduce the
likelihood of any subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to statement of
income on initial recognition, due to expensing acquisition cash flows, offset by an increase in profit
released over the coverage period. For groups of contracts that ate onerous, the liability for remaining
coverage is determined by the fulfilment cash flows. For the marine and personal insurance product lines,
the Company adjusts the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage to reflect the time value
of money and the effect of financial risk using discount rates that reflect the chatacteristics of the cash flows
of the group of insurance contracts at initial recognition.

Liability for incurred claims

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection
techniques, such as Expected Loss Ratio, Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development experience
can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs.

These methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (including
claims handling costs), and claim numbets based on the observed development of earlier years and expected
loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident yeats, but can also be further
analysed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims ate
usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates ot separately
projected in order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made
regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in
the historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement
is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off occutrences,
changes in external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of
claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy
features and claims handling procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that
present the probability weighted expected value outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking
account of all the uncertainties involved.

Some of the insurance contracts that have been wtitten in the property line of business permit the Company
to sell property acquired in settling a claim. The Company also has the right to pursue third patties for
payment of some or all costs. Estimates of salvage recoveries and subrogation reimbursements are
considered as an allowance in the measurement of ultimate claims costs.

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in interest rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign cutrency exchange rates.

Discount rates

Insurance contract liabilities are calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at a risk free rate, plus
an illiquidity premium where applicable. Risk free rates ate determined by reference to the yields of highly
liquid AAA-rated sovereign secutities in the cutrency of the insurance contract labilities. The illiquidity
premium is determined by refetence to observable matket rates. Discount rates applied for discounting of
future cash flows are listed below:

1year 3 years 5 years 10 years
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Personal accident, marine and property contracts issued

USD 5.97% 6.44%  5.15%  5.63% 4.89% 5.32% 4.79% 5.12%
AED 6.72% 559%  5.90%  4.78% 5.63% 447% 5.54% 4.27%
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4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Judgements and estimates (continued)
Discount rates (continued)

Liability reinsurance contracts issued

1year 3 years 5 years 10 years
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
USD 5.97% 6.44%  5.15%  5.63% 4.89% 532% 4.79% 5.12%
AED 6.72% 5.59% _ 5.90% 4.78% 5.63% 4.47% 5.54% 4.27%

Risk adjustment for non-financial tisk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Company requites for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk
adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future
cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency)
approach at the 65th percentile for motor and medical lines of business and 70th percentile for the others.
The Company has estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and the additional amount
above the expected present value of future cash flows required to meet the target percentiles.
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5 Property and Equipment
2023 2022
AED AED
Capital work in progress (Note 5.1) 120,811 791,273
Operating assets (Note 5.2) 11,645,602 22,169,587

11,766,413 22,960,860

5.1 Capital work in progress includes amount of AED 120,811 (2022: AED 791,273) mainly towatds
costs incurred on leasehold improvements and computers and office equipment. Below is the
movement of capital work in progress.

2023 2022

AED AED

Opening capital work in progress 791,273 810,688
Add: additions during the year 252,280 1,291,569
Less: capitalised during the yeat (922,742) (1,310,984)
Closing capital work in progress 120,811 791,273
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United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6 Investment Properties
2023 2022
AED AED
Balance at the beginning of the year 46,783,999 46,799,999
Changes in fair value during the year (note 22) (144,000) (16,000)
Balance at the end of the year 46,639,999 46,783,999

The fair value of the Company’s investment propetties as at 31 December 2023 has been artived at on the
basis of valuation carried on 31 December 2023 by two independent valuers who have appropriate
qualifications and recent market expetience in the valuation properties in the United Arab Emirates.

The fair value was determined based on the discounted cashflow method and income capitalisation method.
In capitalisation of net income method, the market rentals of all lettable units are assessed by reference to
the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similat property in the atea. The
capitalisation rate adopted is made by teference to the yield rates observed by the valuets of similar
properties in the Jocality and adjusted based on the valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to tespective
properties. Discounted cashflow method detives value by discounting future cash flows based on prevailing
micro market conditions in the vicinity of the asset.

The fair values of all the investment properties were determined based on unobservable inputs (ie. level
3).The rental income and operating expenses telating to these propetties are as follows :

2023 2022

AED AED

Rental income 2,594,542 2,050,348

Operating expenses (711,482) (613,393

Net rental income 1,883,060 1,436,955

7 Financial investments

The table below analyses assets at fair value at the end of the reporting year.

2023 2022

AED AED

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 113,580,481 122,132,728

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 155,987,108 103,295,993

269,567,589 225,428,721

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

2023 2022

AED AED

Inside UAE 113,233,171 121,782,329
Outside UAE 347,310 350,399

113,580,481 122,132,728
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7 Financial investments (continued)

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (continued)

Movements in financial investments

The gross movements in equity investments at FVTOCI is as follows:

2023 2022
AED AED
Opening balance 122,132,728 99,900,850
Purchased during the year 66,038,520 138,353,415
Sold during the yeat (86,159,802)  (118,032,725)
Changes in fair value duting the year 11,569,035 1,911,188
Closing balance 113,580,481 122,132,728
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
2023 2022
AED AED
Unquoted equity secutities — outside UAE 2,279,007 2,312,827
Unquoted mutual fund units — outside UAE 102,816,962 46,065,066
Unquoted investments in teal estate fund — outside UAE 50,891,139 44,577,750
Quoted bonds — outside UAE - 7,102,307
Quoted structured products — outside UAE - 3,238,043
155,987,108 103,295,993
The gross moverments in investrents at FVIPL is as follows:
2023 2022
AED AED
Opening balance 103,295,993 64,710,250
Purchased during the year 82,003,515 67,882,451
Sold during the year (28,784,371) (21,210,993)
Changes in fair value during the year (note 22) (528,029) (8,085,715)
Closing balance 155,987,108 103,295,993
8 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between matket participants at the measurement date. As such, differences can arise between
book values and the fair value estimates. Undetlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the
Company is a going concern without any intention or requirement to materially curtail the scale of its
operation ot to undettake a transaction on adverse terms.

Fair value of the Company’s financial assets that are measnred at fair valne on recarring basis.
Table in the next page provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Leve/ 1. Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Leve/ 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
tneasutement is observable, either directly or inditectly.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
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8 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Valnation
2023 2022 Fair valne techniques
AED AED bierarchy  and key inputs

Investments in F1VTOCI
Quoted bid
Quoted investments 113,580,481 122,132,728 Level 1 prices in an
active market

Tnpestments at FI/TPL

Quoted bid
Quoted investments - 10,340,350 Level 1 ptices in an

active matket

Net assets

Unquoted investments 155,987,108 92,955,643 Level 3 valuation
method

Thete ate no financial Habilities which should be measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is
made in the above table.

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measnrement of financial assets measured at fair value:

2023 2022

AED AED

Opening balance 92,955,643 52,777,926
Purchase duting the year 82,003,515 56,555,798
Sold duting the year (18,261,963) (9,903,520)
Changes in fair value during the year (710,087) (6,474,561)
Closing balance 155,987,108 92,955,643
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9 Insurance and reinsurance contracts

Roli-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage and

the liability for incurred claims

The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued, showing the liability for remaining coverage and the
liability for incurred claims, is disclosed in the table below:

Contracts measured under the PAA

2023

Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January

Insurance revenue
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses

Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows

Losses on onerous contracts and reversals
Changes to liabilides for incurred claims
Insurance service result
Insurance finance expense

Total changes in the statement of
comprehensive income

Cash flows

Premiums received

Claims and other expenses paid
Insurance acquisition cash flows

Total cash flows
Net insurance contract liabilities as at
31 Decembet

2022 (restated)

Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Losses on onetous contracts and reversals
Changes to liabilities fot. incutred claims
Insurance service result

Insurance finance income

Total changes in the statement of comprehensive
income

Cash flows

Premiums received

Claims and other expenses paid

Insurance acquisiton cash flows

Total cash flows

Net insurance contract liabilities as at 31 December

Liabilities for remaining

Liabilities for incurred

coverage claims
Estimates of
Excluding the present
loss Loss value of future Risk

component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
48,545,673 11,492,744 264,488,072 16,003,261 340,529,750
(566,162,066) - - - (566,162,066)
107,194,291 9,383,402 446,322,380  (2,305,773) 560,594,300
- - 441,078,140 12,883,733 453,961,873
107,194,291 - - - 107,194,291
- 9,383,402 - - 9,383,402
- - 5,244,240  (15,189,506) (9,945,266)
(458,967,775) 9,383,402 446,322,380  (2,305,773) (5,567,766)
- - 6,773,662 - 6,773,662
(458,967,775) 9,383,402 453,096,042  (2,305,773) 1,205,896
654,946,688 - - - 654,946,688
- - (412,933,612) - (412,933,612)
(118,250,195) - - - (118,250,195)
536,696,493 - (412,933,612) - 123,762,881
126,274,391 20,876,146 304,650,502 13,697,488 465,498,527
61,291,587 7,261,983 154,227,009 5,029,425 227,810,004
(395,123,034) - - - (395,123,034
71,261,490 4,230,761 365,152,763 10,973,836 451,618,850
- - 380,876,237 19,362,449 400,238,686
71,261,490 - - - 71,261,490
- 4,230,761 - - 4,230,761
- - (15,723,474) (8,388,613) (24,112,087
(323,861,544) 4,230,761 365,152,763 10,973,836 56,495,816
- - (5,291,370) - (5,291,370
(323,861,544) 4,230,761 359,861,393 10,973,836 51,204,446
385,965,965 - - - 385,965,965
- - (249,600,330) - (249,600,330)
(74,850,335) - - - (74,850,335)
311,115,630 - (249,600,330 - 61,515,300
48,545,673 11,492,744 264,488,072 16,003,261 340,529,750
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9 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred claims

Contracts measured under the PAA

2023 Assets for remaining Amounts recoverable on
coverage incurred claims
Estimates of
the present
Excluding loss value of
recovery Loss future Risk
component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January (19,697,040) 3,276,163 157,183,982 9,703,745 150,466,850
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 1 January (8,600,444) - 1,032,589 67,253 (7,500,602)
Net reinsurance contract (liabilities)/assets (28,297,484) 3,276,163 158,216,571 9,770,998 142,966,248
Allocation of reinsurance ptemiums (311,311,919) - - (311,311,919)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurets for incurred claims - 4,163,071 268,225,803 722,912 273,111,786
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims and other
expenses - - 269,343,124 11,804,207 281,147,331
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying contracts and
adjustments - 4,163,071 - - 4,163,071
Changes to amounts tecoverable for incurred claims - - (1,117,321)  (11,081,295) (12,198,616)
Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts (311,311,919) 4,163,071 268,225,803 722,912 (38,200,133)
Reinsurance finance income - - 4,701,969 - 4,701,969
Total changes in the statement of comprehensive
income (311,311,919) 4,163,071 272,927,772 722,912 (33,498,164)
Cash flows -
Premiums paid 347,489,235 - - - 347,489,235
Amounts received - - (249,598,551) - (249,598,551)
Total cash flows 347,489,235 - (249,598,551) - 97,890,684
Net reinsurance contract assets/(liabilities) as at
31 December
Reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December 15,456,330 7,439,234 179,427,908 10,477,701 212,801,173
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 31 December (7,576,498) - 2,117,884 16,209 (5,442,405)
Net reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December 7,879,832 7,439,234 181,545,792 10,493,910 207,358,768
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9 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roli-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage and the

amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued)
2022 (testated)

Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 1 January

Net reinsurance contract (liabilities)/assets

An allocation of reinsurance premiums

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims and other
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying contracts and
Changes to amounts recoverable for incurred claims

Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

Reinsurance finance income

Investment components and premium refunds

Effect of changes in non-performance risk of reinsurers

Total changes in the statement of comprehensive income

Cash flows

Premiums paid

Amounts received

Total cash flows

Net reinsurance contract assets/ (liabilities) as at 31

December

Reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December

Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 31 December

Net reinsurance contract assets/ (liabilities) as at 31 December

Assets for remaining

Amounts recoverable on
incurred claims

coverage

Estimates of

the present

Excluding value of

loss recovery Loss future Risk

component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED AED AED AED AED
11,017,473 606,082 39,561,079 2,124,703 53,309,337
(33,975,416) 379,406 19,030,637 593208  (13,972,165)
(22,957,943) 985,488 58,591,716 2,717911 39,337,172
(202,061,881) - - - (202,061,881)
- 2,290,675 226,445,765 7,053,087 235,789,527
- - 230,794,494 12,208,880 243,003,374
- 2,290,675 - - 2,290,675
- - (4,348,729)  (5,155,793) (9,504,522)
(202,061,881) 2,290,675 226,445,765 7,053,087 33,727,646
- - (3,717,546) - (3,717,546)
(202,061,881) 2,290,675 222,728,219 7,053,087 30,010,100
196,722,340 - - - 196,722,340
- - (123103364 - (123,103,364
196,722,340 - (123,103,364) - 73,618,976
(19,697,040) 3,276,163 157,183,982 9,703,745 150,466,850
(8,000,444) - 1,032,589 67,253 (7,500,602)
(28,297,484) 3,276,163 158,216,571 9,770,998 142,966,248

39



oy

88V L69°€1 - - - - - - - - siusunsnipy sy
T05°059'v0€ - - - - - - - - uonisod feueuy
JO 3udUIIIe)Is Y3 Ut papnjoul
SIATIST SSOI3 PIIUNOOSIP [€I10),
(015°1€2°6) - - - - - - - - Supunossip jo 103y
2107881 9¢0°TIE 88T €68°99¢‘88  STSTLETT  66£°6TETI  880°€TLC  ¥EEILT $8EYT6 €SE*Y8S SWIE[> PI1INDUY JOJ SINTqeT]
Pa1UmodsIpUn SsoI3 12107,
£69°6LZTL £€9°Cog'Ch 1€8°8PC0T 79126 S68°809°C €90°.29 Z8¥79 $98°21¢ £OSHET siqeded suneiy
LIS LLYT LIS LLYT 29439893 asuadxa
jusunsnipe ssoj pazedofeu)
€6L°188°0S2°T  L6S°L90°LLE LIEPBIT8C 96V OTF'CET  TL6°980°981 HEO'SCH'STT  €12TST99  66T°611°6F  S98°60€°SE 21ep 01 syuawied sapenuny
S6Z'900° 16K T €81°LES 0T 6LETOT0SE  6S9°9L8°6YC 9LV LOSH6L  6S0°TESLZL  S90°1999  6I8°0¢8'Sh  GS9°6SL°GE SWIE[D SABEB[OWND JO ReWHSH
GS9°6SLSE - - - - - - - GG9°6SLSE 39127 53894 UdAIG
618°0¢8°sy - - - - - - 618°0€8°Sy  pIE'ETESE saye] s3eak x1g
$90°19+°99 - - - - - SO0‘19%°99  695°LZ8°Sy  €8€°61T LE 193] S¥E34 ATy
650°1€S°LT1 - - - - 6S01ESLTT  896°€09°99  S9¥LT69Y 6P ES8Op 39)¢] s3e2h Moy
LY L0861 - - - 9LV LO8H6T  69EFBG'STT  8SS'SLL99  186°TLT8Y  VOSYLIVY 1o38] s34 Q21 Y,
659°9L8°6YC - - 659°9L8°6YT  LG6S'SLLTG6T  1SG'TL80ET  96L°68L89  106V9S'Ly  ¥6S°SLITY 1e] szeah oM,
6LET0T°0SE - 6LETOT0SE  TLEYS6'0ST  6Z9°€E9°061  0LO'STYTEL  SET08LGO9  TGITLSLY  0SSH86°L9 1918] Feah SUQ
£81°L€5 0Ty £81°L€5°0Th 6L1TO6YZE  TLSGOL9CT 8TTGYH 981  SSGI8IPTL  GPO'LIL'R9  TIC606Hy - Tealk
Bunzodaz yses Jo pud oy Iy

aav agzv aav aav aav aav aav aav aav
relo], €20T 720t 1202 0202 6102 810Z L10Z sond pae1say

PUE 9107

:23ep 03 syuswiked

SARE[OWIND (I 3233507 “91ep Bonfsod [EPUELT JO JUIWNNEIS YOES 38 3834 JUSPIIIE AISSIIONS YLD J0F SWIE PAXIMOUT $S018 9ATNE[AWIND aY) $103[§27 I[qel Bumorjoy oy,

:3[qe) 1udtadojaadp suire)

(Ponui3uU02) S3OoRIIUCD IIUBINSUIDS pUE IdUBINSU| 6

£70T 3quiada(] [ Papue Tead o3 10

SINHWHLV.LS TVIONVNIA HHL OL SHLON

('D's'd) Auedwon) souemsuy APpLy paIUN



United Fidelity Insurance Company (P.S.C.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023

10 Prepayments and other assets
2023 2022
AED AED
Acctued income 2,522,266 1,266,144
Advances to employees 868,554 707,321
Prepayments 634,328 486,168
Secutity deposits 343,102 464,280
Others 171,042 445,489
4,539,292 3,369,402

11 Statutory Deposits

As at 31 December 2023, deposit of AED 10,000,000 (2022: AED 10,000,000) has been placed with one
of the Company’s bank account in accordance with UAE Federal Law No. 48 of 2023 (previously Federat
Law No.6 of 2007). This deposit has been pledged to the bank as secutity against a guarantee issued by the
bank in favor of the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (‘CBUAE”) for the same amount. This
deposit cannot be withdrawn without prior approval of the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates and
beats an interest rate of 4.90% per annum (2022: 4.23% per annum).

12 Bank balances and cash
Bank balances and cash comprise the following statement of financial position amounts:

All balances are held in United Arab Emirates. The annual rate of fixed deposits is 4.9% to 5.00% (2022
2.27% to 4.23%).

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled
to the related iterns in the financial items in the statement of financial position as follows:

2023 2022
AED AED
Bank balances and cash 76,228,358 58,736,058
Bank deposits with maturity over 3 months (13,000,000)  (23,000,000)
Cash and cash equivalents 63,228,358 35,736,058
13 Share capital
2023 2022
AED AED
Issued and fully paid:
160,000,000 ordinary shares of AED 1 each 160,000,000 160,000,000
14 Statutory reserve

In accotdance with the UAE Federal Dectree Law No. 32 of 2021, the Company has established a statutory
reserve by appropriation of 5% of the Company’s net profit for each year which will be increased until the
tesetve equals 50% of the shate capital. This reserve is not available for distribution, except as stipulated by the
Law. Duting the year no amount was transferred to the reserve as a result of net losses incurred
(2022: AED 68,322).
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15 General reserve

The general resetrve is established through transfers from profit for the year as recommended by the Board
of Directors’ and approved by the Shareholders’ at the Annual General Meeting. The reserve is disttibutable
based on a recommendation by the Board of Directors’, approved by a Shareholders’ resolution. During
the year, no transfers were made to general reserves, In the previous year, transaction costs for the share
issue amounted to AED 672,000 have been recorded in the general reserve.

16 Reinsurance reserve

In accordance with Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates’ Board of Directors’ Decision No. 23 of
2019, Article 34, an amount of AED 1,812,650 (2022: 1,248,747) based on the reinsurance shate of premium
at a rate of 0.5% was transferred from retained earnings to reinsurance reserve. The reserve is not available
for distribution, and will not be disposed of without prior approval from Central Bank of the United Arab
Emirates.

17 Basic and diluted (loss)/ earning per share
Restated
2023 2022
AED AED
(Loss) / profit for the year (17,431,932) 3,648,705
Weighted average number of shares 160,000,000 123,076,923
(Loss) / earnings pet shate (0.109) 0.030

Basic and diluted (loss) / eatnings per shate ate calculated by dividing the (loss) / profit for the yeat by the
weighted average number of shares duting the year. Diluted earnings per share is equivalent to basic
earnings per share as the Company did not issue any new instrument that would impact earnings per share
when executed.

18 Employees’ end of service benefits
Movements in the provision recognised in the statement of financial position ate as follows:
2023 2022
AED AED
Provision as at 1 January 4,149,775 3,376,247
Provided during the year 978,192 1,009,197
End of service benefits paid (643,605) (235,669)
Provision as at 31 December 4,484,362 4,149,775

19 Lease liabilities

The Company has leases for the office premises within UAE as at 31 December 2023. With the exception
of short-term leases and leases of low-value undetlying assets, each lease is reflected on the statement of
financial position as a tight to use asset and a lease liability. The Company classifies its right to use assets in
a consistent manner to its property and equipment. Future minimum lease payments as at 31 December
2023 were as mentioned below:

Within 1 year 1-5 years After 5 years Total
AED AED AED AED

31 December 2023
Lease payments 1,939,136 6,170,841 - 8,109,977
Finance charges (341,949) (580,523) - (922,472)
Net present values 1,597,187 5,590,318 - 7,187,505
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19 Lease liabilities (continued)
Within 1 yeat 1-5 years After 5 years Total
AED AED AED AED
31 December 2022
Lease payments 4,650,433 13,839,222 788,966 19,278,621
Finance charges (656,241) (1,043,896) (10,792) (1,710,929)
Net present values 3,994,192 12,795,326 778,174 17,567,692

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognising a right to use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these
are recognised as an expense in statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Company for its branch offices.

20 Other payable

2023 2022
AED AED
Accrued expenses 6,004,379 4918,167
VAT payables 6,053,024 3,866,389
Other payables 4,688,046 5,846,763
16,745,449 14,631,319

21 Insurance service expense
Restated
2023 2022
AED AED
Incurred claims and other expenses 426,248,815 371,266,979
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows 107,194,291 71,261,490
Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of those losses 9,383,402 4,230,761
Changes to liabilities for incutred claims (9,945,266) (24,112,087)
Acquisition cash flows recognised when incurred 27,713,058 28,971,707
Insurance service expense 560,594,300 451,618,850

Social contributions during the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to AED 185,848 (31 December
2022: AED 202,031).
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22 Total investment income and net insurance financial result

Restated
2023 2022
AED AED
Rental income from investment properties 2,594,542 2,050,348
Loss on property revaluation (note 6) (144,000) (16,000)
Investment property expenses (711,482) (613,393)
Income from investment property - net 1,739,060 1,420,955
Interest on fixed deposits 1,379,056 866,472
Gain on disposal of investments at FVTOCI - 20,673,954
Gain on disposal of investments at FVIPL 491,846 761,168
Dividend income - investments at FVTOCI 5,224,696 4,871,085
Dividend income - investments at FVIPL 4,565,661 2,553,889
Interest income from bonds 5,079,042 1,124,493
Other investment expenses (241,218) (269,951)
Loss in fait value of investments FVIPL (note 7) (528,029) (8,085,715)
Net Investment Income 17,710,114 23916,350

Insurance and reinsurance finance income and expense
Restated
For the year ended 31 December 2023 2022
AED AED
Finance (expenses) / income from insurance contracts issued (6,773,662) 5,291,370
Finance income /(expenses) from reinsurance contracts held 4,701,969 (3,717,546)
Net insurance finance (expenses) / income (2,071,693) 1,573,824

23 Related party transactions

Related patties represent, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company,
and entities conttrolled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. The pricing policies
and terms of these transactions ate approved by the Company’s management. At the end of the year,

significant balances due from related parties are as follows:

Affitiates of major shareholders:
Due to related parties (insurance contract liabilities)
Liability for incurred claims
Other payables/receivables

Transactions

During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Affiliates of major shareholders:

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Net expenses from teinsurance contracts held
Employee benefits to key management personnel

2023 2022

AED AED
(8,345,460)  (6,378,497)
(5,229,550)  (8,828,742)
548,966 (4,305)
2023 2022

AED AED
22,774,507 11,729,585
(21,650,894)  (9,197,465)
(10,090,073)  (4,845,.891)
3,168,135 3,205,720
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24 Segment Information

For management purposes, the Company is organized into three business segments commercial, consumer
and employee benefits (medical and group Life). The commercial insurance segment comprises
engineeting, marine, propetty, liability and casualty and consumer segment comptises of motor, pet, travel
and others. These segments are the basis on which the Company reports its ptimary segment information.
Segment-wise information is disclosed below:

31 December 2023

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Insurance setvice result before
reinsurance contracts held

Amounts recoverable from reinsutance

Allocation of reinsurance premiums

Net expenses from reinsurance
contracts held

Insurance Service Result

31 December 2022 (Restated)

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service result before
teinsurance contracts held

Amounts recoverable from teinsurance

Allocation of teinsurance premiums

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts
held

Insurance setvice result

31 December 2023

Insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract assets

Employee
Commercial Consumer benefits Total
AED AED AED AED
139,535,685 115,970,506 310,655,875 566,162,066
(96,810,884) (144,246,223)  (319,537,193)  (560,594,300)
42,724,801  (28,275,717) (8,881,318) 5,567,766
52,968,854 22,157,033 197,985,899 273,111,786
(91,988,382) (22,850,640)  (196,472,897)  (311,311,919)
(39,019,528)  (693,607) 1,513,002  (38,200,133)
3,705,273  (28,969,324) (7,368,316) (32,632,367)
Employee
Commetcial Consumer benefits Total
AED AED AED AED
114,441,709 95,032,680 185,648,645 . 395,123,034
(158,646,988)  (100,509,532)  (192,462,330)  (451,618,850)
(44,205,279) (5,476,852 (6,813,685)  (56,495816)
111,500,768 12,660,479 111,628,280 235,789,527
(74,097468)  (12,363273)  (115,601,140)  (202,061,881)
37,403,300 297,206 (3,972,860) 33,727,646
(6,801,979) (5,179,646)  (10,786,545)  (22,768,170)
The following is an analysis of the Company’s assets, liabilities and equity classified by segment:
Employee
Commercial Consumet benefits Total
AED AED AED AED
(162,328,214) (173,513,014) (129,657,299) (465,498,527)
134,619,311 43,258,138 34,923,724 212,801,173
- (1,776,586) (3,665,819) (5,442,405)

Reinsurance contract liabilities
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24 Segment Information (continued)

31 December 2022 (Restated)

Commetcial

AED

Insurance contract assets -
Insurance contract liabilities (159,379,280)
Reinsurance contract assets 121,161,804
Reinsurance contract liabilities (1,413,204)

Employee

Consumer benefits
AED AED

- 78,986
(102,503,333) (78,726,123)
20,742,417 8,562,629

- (6,087,398)

Total
AED

78,986
(340,608,736)
150,466,850
(7,500,602)

25 Gross Written Premiums

Details telating to gross written contributions are disclosed below to comply with the requirements of
CBUAE and ate not calculated as pet the requirements of IFRS 17.

2023

Direct written premiums
Assumed business

Total gross written premiums

2022

Direct written premiums
Assumed business

Total gross written premiums

Property &

Liability

Life Medical (without
insurance insurance medical) Total
AED AED AED AED
2,865,754 320,196,528 326,460,405 649,522,687
- - 4,033,845 4,033,845
2,865,754 320,196,528 330,494,250 653,556,532

Property &

Liability

Life Medical (without
insurance insurance medical) Total
AED AED AED AED
5,364,631 211,620,380 202,232,248 419,217,259
- - 2,857,245 2,857,245
5,364,631 211,620,380 205,089,493 422,074,504
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26 Contingencies and commitments
Contingent liabilities
2023 2022
AED AED
Lettets of guarantee 11,074,948 12,461,014

Letters of guarantee includes AED 10 million (31 December 2022: AED 10 million) issued in favour of the
CBUAE. The Company in common with the significant majority of insutes, is subject to litigation in normal
course of its business. The Company, based on independent legal advice, does not expect that the outcome
of these coutt cases will have a material impact on the Company’s financial performance ot financial
position.

Capital and lease commitments

The Company has elected not to recognise a lease liability for short term leases (leases with an expected
term of 12 months or less) and for leases of low value assets. Payments made under such leases are expensed
on a straight-line basis. At 31 Decembet, the Company does not have any capital and short-term lease
commitments.

27 Risk management
(a) Governance framework

The primaty objective of the Company’s tisk and financial management framework is to protect the
Company’s sharcholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance
objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. Key management recognises the critical importance of
having efficient and effective tisk management systems in place.

The Company’s risk management function is carried out by the boatd of directors, with its associated
committees. This is supplemented with a clear organisational structure with documented delegated
authorities and responsibilities from the boatd of directors to the Chief Executive Officer and senior
managers.

The board of directors meets regulatly to approve any commercial, regulatory and organisational decisions.
The Chief Executive Officer under the authotity delegated from the board of directors defines the
Company’s risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and diversification
of assets, align underwriting and teinsurance strategy to the corporate goals, and specify reporting
requirements.

The Company’s current enterprise tisk management framewotk is formally documented and divided into
three phases. The Company’s enterprise tisk management framework is established to identify and analyse
the key tisks faced by the Company’s to set appropriate conttols and manage those risks. As part of the
tisks identification process, the Company uses risk based capital model to assess the capital requirement
and uses stress analysis to apply changes to capital. The Company’s risk appetite is derived from the changes
to capital.
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27 Risk management (continued)
(b) Capital management framework

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to comply with the regulatory requitements
in the UAE and to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shatreholders or issue new shates. Section 2 of the Financial Regulations for
Insurance Companies (the “Regulations”) issued by the Central Bank of UAE identifies the required
solvency margin to be held in addition to insurance habilities. The solvency margin must be maintained at
all times throughout the year. The Company has incotporated in its policies and procedutes the necessary
tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with these Regulations. The table below summatises the
Minimum Capital Requitement, Minimum Guarantee Fund and Solvency Capital Requirement of the
Company and the total capital held to meet these solvency matgins as defined in the Regulations.
31 December 31 December

2023 2022

AED AED

Minimum Capital Requitement (MCR) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Solvency Capital Requitement (SCR) 108,647,062 98,605,962
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 60,561,719 45,614,517
Basic Own Funds 103,509,027 87,895,558
MCR Solvency Margin Sutplus/ (Deficit) 3,509,027  (12,104,442)
SCR Solvency Matgin Deficit (5,138,035) (10,710,404)
MGF Solvency matgin Surplus 42,947,309 42,281,042

As of 31 December, the Company had 2 SCR Solvency Margin Deficit of AED 5.1 million as compared
to the SCR capital requirements of AED 108.6 million. The company has submitted a detailed solvency
plan to the central bank to restore the solvency position which is currently under implementation.

(c) Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and monitor them closely
to ensure that the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the
regulators are also interested in ensuting that the Company maintains an appropriate solvency position to
meet unforeseen labilitles arising from economic shocks or natural disasters. The operations of the
Company ate also subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where it operates. Such
regulations not only presctibe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain testrictive
provisions (e.g. capital adequacy) to minimise the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance
companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

(d) Asset liability management (ALM) framework

Financial risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which ate
exposed to general and specific market movements. The Company manages these positions to achieve long-
term investment returns in excess of its obligations under insurance contracts. The principal technique of
the Company’s ALM is to match assets to the liabilities atising from insurance contracts by reference to the
type of benefits payable to contract holders. The Company actively monitors the ALM to ensute in each
petiod sufficient cash flow is available to meet liabilities arising from insurance contracts. The Company
regularly monitors the financial risks associated with the Company’s other financial assets and Labilities not
directly associated with insurance liabilities. The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are
mitigated by management are summatised in the next page.
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27 Risk management (continued)
27A  Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims,
sevetity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the
objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these Habilities.

The above risk exposute is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy
guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

Frequency and amounts of claims ,

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Company underwrites mainly
medical, property, motot, matine, fire, engineering and general accident risks. These are regarded as short-
term insurance contracts as claims are normally advised and settled within one year of the insuted event
taking place. This helps to mitigate insurance risk.

Properzy

Property insurance is designed to compensate contract holders for damage suffered to properties or for the
value of property lost. Contract holders could also teceive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by
the inability to use the insured properties. For propetty insurance contracts the main risks are fire and
business interruption. In recent years the Company has only underwritten policies for properties containing
fire detection equipment. These contracts ate underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the
propetties and contents insured. The cost of rebuilding properties and obtaining replacement contents and
the time taken to restart operations which leads to business interruptions are the main factors that influence
the level of claims. The Company has treinsurance cover for such damage to limit losses for any individual
claim to AED 1,470,000 (2022: AED 1,470,000).

Motor

Motor insurance is designed to compensate contract holdets for damage suffered to their vehicles or liability
to third parties arising through accidents. Contract holders could also receive compensation for the fire or
theft of their vehicles. For motor contracts the main risks ate claims for death and bodily injury and the
replacement or repair of vehicles. The Company has reinsurance cover for such claims to limit losses for
any individual claim to AED 300,000 (2022: AED 300,000). The level of court awards for deaths and to
injuted parties and the replacement costs of motor vehicles are the key factors that influence the level of
claims.

Marine

Matine insurance is designed to compensate contract holders for damage and liability arising through loss
ot damage to marine craft and accidents at sea resulting in the total or partial loss of cargos. For marine
insutance the main risks are loss or damage to marine craft and accidents resulting in the total or partial
loss of cargoes. The underwtiting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that policies are well
diversified in terms of vessels and shipping routes covered. The Company has reinsurance to limit losses
for any individual claim to AED 1,470,000 (2022: AED 1,470,000).

Medical

Medical insurance is designed to compensate the contract holders for medical costs. For medical insurance,
the main risks are illness and related healthcare costs. The Company generally does not offer medical
insurance to walk-in customers. Medical insurance is generally offered to corporate customers with large
population to be covered under the policy.

Reinsurance risk

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure atising from large
insurance claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangements with other
patties for reinsurance purposes. Such teinsurance arrangements provide for greater diversification of
business, allow management to control exposute to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide
additional capacity for growth. A significant portion of the reinsurance is affected under treaty, facultative
and excess of loss reinsurance contracts.
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27 Risk management (continued)
27A  Insurance risk (continued)
Reinsurance risk (continued)

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from teinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of its reinsurers. The Company deals with reinsurers approved by the Board of
Directors. Also, 84% of the treaty programme is placed with A and above rated companies as at
31 December 2023 (2022: 93.5%).

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities,
teinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particulat, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its
investment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations atising from its insurance contracts. The
most important components of this financial risk are market risk (which includes: foreign currency risk,
equity and debt price risk and interest rate risk), credit tisk, liquidity risk and operational risk.

27B Financial risk

The Company’s principal financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities which
comptise financial investments (at fait value through profit or loss and other comprehensive income),
receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts, statutory deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, and re-insurance balance payables. The Company does not enter into derivative
transactions.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market risk credit risk, liquidity risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate tisk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk the fait value ot future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Company’s market risks may arise from open positions in (a) foreign
currencies and (b) interest bearing assets and liabilities, to the extent they are exposed to general and specific
market movements. Management sets limits on the exposure to cutrency and interest rate risk that may be
acceptable, which are monitored on a regular basis.

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Company’s
exposure to market risks ot the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as all monetary assets and monetary liabilities are denominated
in Arab Emirates Dirthams, or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed.

Management believes that there is a minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations and
consequently the Company has not hedged its foreign currency exposure.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the finance income ot
finance cost of the Company. The Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk on investments
in bonds and term deposits since they carry fixed interest rates. As such, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows ate substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Company
generally manages to minimise the interest rate tisk by closely monitoring the market interest rates and
investing in those financial assets in which such tisk is expected to be minimal.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on:
(1) Liability for incurred claims; and
(i) Asset for incutred claims.

The tables in the next page shows the impact of change in risk adjustment and discounting on liability for
incurred claims and assets for incurred claims:
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27 Risk management (continued)

27B Financial risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

31 December 2023

Risk Adjustment

5% increase
5% dectease

Discounting

0.5% increase

0.5% decrease

31 December 2022

Risk adjustment

5% increase

5% dectease

Discounting

0.5% inctease

0.5% decrease

Impact on
profit gross Impacton Impact on equity
of Impact on profit equity gross net of
reinsurance net of reinsurance of reinsurance reinsurance
AED AED AED AED
684,874 160,179 684,874 160,179
(684,874) (160,179) (684,874) (160,179)
(801,463) (203,399) (801,463) (203,399)
809,521 205,245 809,521 205,245
Impact on profit  Impact on profit Impact on
gross of netof  equity gross of Impact on equity
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance  net of reinsurance
AED AED AED AED
800,163 311,613 800,163 311,613
(800,163) (311,613) (800,163) (311,613)
(733,870) (260,785) (733,870) (260,785)
742,203 264,155 742,203 264,155
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27 Risk management (continued)
27B Financial risk (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit tisk are:

reinsurance contract assets;

amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;
amounts due from insurance contract holders;

amounts due from insurance intermediaties;

amounts due from other insurance companies;

investments in debt instruments;

cash and cash equivalents excluding cash in hand; and

fixed deposits

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as 2 means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored, and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by
Management annually. A default on a financial asset is when the counterpatty fails to make contractual
payments within 90 days of when they fall due.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance tisk. This does not, howevet, discharge the Company’s liability as
primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the
payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by
teviewing their financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract.

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it
conducts regular business. The exposute to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms,
such as the right of offset where countetparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company.
Management information treported to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on
insurance and other receivables and subsequent write-offs. Exposures to individual policyholders and
groups of policyholders are mitigated by ongoing credit evaluation of their financial condition. Where there
exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of policyholders, a financial
analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Company.

The cartying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

For insurance and other receivables, the Company applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected impaitment provision for insurance and other
receivables. The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision mattix,
estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as
appropriate to reflect current conditions.
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27 Risk management (continued)
27B Financial risk (continued)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refets to the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its
financial liabilities at matutity date. Ultimate tesponsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the

management, which has built an approptiate liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Company’s shott, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and kLabilities to ensure that
funds are available to meet its commitments for liabilities as they fall due.

The table on the next page summarises the matutity of the assets and liabilities of the Company based on
remaining contractual settlement dates.
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28 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Boatd of Directors and authorised for issue on 19 March,
2024.
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